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Corporate Governance
Corporate Governance Compliance Report

In terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement (Clause 49) entered into with the Stock Exchanges, the Corporate Governance Compliance Report is provided 
hereunder:

1. Company’s philosophy on Code of Governance 

 � Ensure that the quantity, quality and frequency of financial and managerial information, which the management shares with the Board, fully places the 
Board Members in control of the Company’s affairs.

 � Ensure that the Board exercises its fiduciary responsibilities towards shareowners and creditors, thereby ensuring high accountability.

 � Ensure that the extent to which the information is disclosed to present and potential investors is maximized. 

 � Ensure that the decision-making is transparent and documentary evidence is traceable through the minutes of the meetings of the Board/Committees 
thereof. 

 � Ensure that the Board, the Management, the Employees and all concerned are fully committed to maximizing long-term value to the shareowners and 
the Company. 

 � Ensure that the core values of the Company are protected.

 �  Ensure that the Company positions itself from time to time to be at par with any other world-class company in operating practices. 

2. Board of Directors 

 Details of Directors 

Sr. 
No.

Name of Director ED/NED
ID/NID*

Attendance
in Board 
Meetings

Attendance
in last AGM

Other Board

Directorship 
**

Committee
Chairmanship 

***

Committee
Membership

(Including 
Chairmanship) ***

1. Manoj Tirodkar, Chairman# NED/NID 5 Present 1 0 1
2. Balasubramanian N., Vice Chairman$ NED/ID 5 Present 4 0 0
3. Prakash Ranjalkar ED/NID 5 Present 0 0 0
4. Anand Patkar NED/ID 5 Present 0 0 0
5. Charudatta Naik NED/NID 4 Present 1 0 0
6. Deepak Vaidya NED/ID 3 Absent 5 3 5
7. G. V. Desai @ NED/ID 2 Absent N.A. N.A. N.A.
8. Prakash Samant NED/ID 5 Present 1 0 1
9. S. S. Dawra @@ NED/ID 1 Present N.A. N.A. N.A.

10. Vishwas Pathak NED/ID 5 Present 1 0 0
11.  Vivek Kulkarni NED/ID 2 Present 2 0 0

All the Directors are Non-Promoter Directors.
* ED – Executive Director; NED – Non-Executive Director; ID – Independent Director; NID – Non-Independent Director.
**  In Indian Public Limited Companies.
***  In Audit Committee and Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance Committee of Indian Public Limited Companies.
# Related to promoter
$  Appointed as Vice Chairman w.e.f. April 18, 2008
@  Resigned as Director w.e.f. July 3, 2008
@@ Resigned as Director w.e.f. October 31, 2008

Details of Board Meetings held during the year ended March 31, 2009:  

Date of Board Meeting 18.04.08 03.07.08 18.07.08 31.10.08 14.01.09
Board Strength 11 11 10 9 9
No. of Directors Present 8 9 9 7 9



276 t h A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 0 8 - 0 9

3. Audit Committee

 The composition of the Audit Committee meets the requirement of Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.  All the 
Members of the Audit Committee posses financial / accounting expertise. 

 Brief description of terms of reference:

 � Review the financial reporting process and disclosure of its financial information.

 �  Review with the Management the annual/quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval.

 �  Review with the Management, the performance of Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and the adequacy of internal control systems.

 �  Review the Company’s accounting policies. 

 �  Look into reasons for substantial defaults, if any, in payment to depositors, shareowners and creditors.

 �  Recommend the appointment, re-appointment and replacement or removal of Statutory Auditors and fixation of Audit Fee. 

 �  Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by them. 

 �  Other functions as required by applicable Regulations. 

Composition of Committee and Attendance of Members: 

Sr.
No.

Name of Director and position Meetings held Meetings attended

1. Prakash Samant, Chairman 4 4 
2. Vishwas Pathak, Member 4 4
3. Balasubramanian N., Member 4 4
4. Anand Patkar, Member 4 4

4. Nomination & Remuneration Committee

 Brief description of terms of reference:

 � Frame Company’s policies for Board and Directors with the approval of the Board of Directors. 

 � Make recommendations for the appointments on the Board.

 � Recommend compensation payable to the Executive Directors. 

 � Administer and supervise Employee Stock Option Schemes. 

 � Perform such other functions consistent with applicable regulatory requirements.

Composition of Committee and Attendance of Members: 

Sr. 
No.

Name of Director and Position Meetings held Meetings attended

1. Balasubramanian N., Chairman 4 4
2. Prakash Samant 4 4
3. Deepak Vaidya 4 4

Remuneration Policy: The Policy Dossier approved by the Board at its meeting held on August 11, 2006, inter alia, provides for the following: 

Executive Directors: 

� Salary and commission not to exceed limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 1956.

� Remunerate from time to time depending upon the performance of the Company, individual Director’s performance and prevailing Industry norms.

� No sitting fees. 

� No Employee Stock Option Scheme for Promoter Directors. 

Non-Executive Directors: 

� Eligible for commission based on time, efforts and output given by them.

� Sitting fees and commission not to exceed limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 1956. 

� Eligible for Employee Stock Option Scheme (other than Promoter Directors). 
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Details of remuneration to all the Directors:

Sr.
No.

Name of Director Salary
(Rs.)

Benefits
(Rs.)

Bonus/
Commission 

(Rs.)

Performance 
linked

incentives

Sitting
fees
(Rs.)

Total
(Rs.)

Stock 
Options

No. of 
shares 

held 

Service Contract/
Notice period/

Severance fees
1. Manoj Tirodkar - - - - 180,000 180,000 NIL 59,65,283 Retirement by Rotation
2. Balasubramanian N. - - - - 245,000 245,000 Δ 5,00,000 NIL Retirement by Rotation
3. Prakash Ranjalkar 1,800,000 2,109,000 - 774,135 - 4,683,135 ## 4,80,000

@ 29,00,000
$$ 3,12,000
� 29,00,000

28,400 ^

4. Dr. Anand Patkar - - - - 80,000 80,000 Δ 2,00,000 2,500 Retirement by Rotation
5. Charudatta Naik - - - - 40,000 40,000 # 5,00,000

@ 5,00,000
$ 3,25,000
� 5,00,000

4,85,900 Retirement by Rotation

6. Deepak Vaidya - - - - 60,000 60,000 � 2,00,000
�� 2,00,000

1,40,000 Retirement by Rotation

7. *G.V. Desai - - - - 20,000 20,000 @@ 2,00,000
� � 2,00,000

- Retirement by Rotation

8. Prakash Samant - - - - 90,000 90,000 @2,00,000
� 2,00,000

NIL Retirement by Rotation

9. ** S.S. Dawra - - - - 10,000 10,000 Ω 2,00,000
Ω Ω 2,00,000 

- Retirement by Rotation

10. Vishwas Pathak - - - - 125,000 125,000 + 2,00,000
� 2,00,000

40,000 Retirement by Rotation

11. Vivek Kulkarni - - - - 20,000 20,000 Δ 2,00,000 NIL Retirement by Rotation

* Resigned as Director w.e.f . July 3, 2008 due to Company’s retirement policy.
** Resigned as Director w.e.f . October 31, 2008 due to Company’s retirement policy.

^ The tenure of office of Mr. Prakash Ranjalkar is for a period of 3 years with effect from April 1, 2007 and can be terminated by either party by giving 3 months 
notice in writing. There is no provision for payment of severance fee. 

# Granted on November 26, 2005 at the rate of Rs.10 per share, out of which 1,75,000 options got exercised into equity shares on February 23, 2007 and 
1,75,000 options got exercised into equity shares on January 25, 2008. 

@ Granted on February 12, 2007 at the rate of Rs.29.81 per share and re-priced to Rs.19.90 on October 9, 2007 on account of Corporate Action namely Right Issue.
$  Granted on October 9, 2007 at the rate of Rs.10 per share on account of Corporate Action namely Right Issue, out of which 1,75,000 options got converted 

into equity shares on January 25, 2008.
� Granted on October 9, 2007 at the rate of Rs.19.90 per share on account of Corporate Action namely Right Issue.
�  Granted on February 12, 2007 at the rate of Rs.29.81 per share and re-priced to Rs.19.90 on October 9, 2007 on account of Corporate Action namely Right 

Issue, out of which 70,000 options got exercised into equity shares on April 24, 2008.
�� Granted on October 9, 2007 at the rate of Rs.19.90 per share on account of Corporate Action namely Right Issue, out of which 70,000 options got exercised 

into equity shares on April 24, 2008.
+  Granted on February 12, 2007 at the rate of Rs.29.81 per share and re-priced to Rs.19.90 on October 9, 2007 on account of Corporate Action namely Right 

Issue, out of which 40,000 options got exercised into equity shares on April 24, 2008.
@@ Granted on February 12, 2007 at the rate of Rs.29.81 per share and re-priced to Rs.19.90 on October 9, 2007 on account of Corporate Action namely Right Issue, 

out of which 10,000 options got exercised into equity shares on April 24, 2008 and 1,30,000 options have got lapsed on July 3, 2008 due to resignation.
� � Granted on October 9, 2007 at the rate of Rs.19.90 per share on account of Corporate Action namely Right Issue, out of which 1,30,000 options have got 

lapsed on July 3, 2008 due to resignation.
##  Granted on November 26, 2005 at the rate of Rs.10 per share, out of which 1,68,000 options got exercised into equity shares on February 23, 2007. 
$$  Granted on October 9, 2007 at the rate of Rs.10 per share on account of Corporate Action namely Right Issue. 
Ω  Granted on February 12, 2007 at the rate of Rs.29.81 per share and re-priced to Rs.19.90 on October 9, 2007 on account of Corporate Action namely Right Issue, 

out of which 70,000 options got exercised into equity shares on April 24, 2008 and 1,30,000 options have got lapsed on October 31, 2008 due to resignation.
Ω Ω  Granted on October 9, 2007 at the rate of Rs.19.90 per share on account of Corporate Action namely Right Issue, out of which 70,000 options got exercised 

into equity shares on April 24, 2008 and 1,30,000 options have got lapsed on October 31, 2008 due to resignation.
Δ  Granted on March 11, 2008 at a conversion price of Rs.33.60 per share.
 The other relevant details of stock option, including exercise period, vesting period, etc are covered elsewhere in the report.
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Notes:

 1. Each Option underlie equal number of equity share of face value of Rs. 10/-.

 2. Apart from above, the Company does not have any other pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Directors.

5. Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance Committee

 Brief description of terms of reference:

 1. Look into the redressal of Shareholders’ and Investors’ complaints/grievances like transfer of shares, non receipt of Balance Sheet, non receipt of 
declared dividends, etc; 

 2. Review the certificate of the Practicing Company Secretary regarding timely action on transfer, sub-division, consolidation, renewal, exchange or 
endorsement of calls/allotment monies;

 3. Oversee the performance of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent and recommend measures for overall improvement in the quality of investor 
services;

 4. Ascertain whether the Registrars & Share Transfer Agents (RTA) are sufficiently equipped with infrastructure facilities such as adequate manpower, 
computer hardware and software, office space, documents handling facility etc. to serve the shareholders/investors;

 5. Recommend to the Board, the appointment, reappointment, if required, the replacement or removal of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent and 
fixation of their fees; and

 6. To carry out any other function as required by the Listing Agreement of the Stock Exchanges, Companies Act and other Regulations.

  �  Name of Non-Executive Director heading the Committee : Mr. Manoj Tirodkar

  � Name and Designation of Compliance Officer : Mr. D. S. Gunasingh, Company Secretary upto December 4, 2008.

    : Mr. Ravikumar Vemulakonda, Joint Company Secretary w.e.f . December 4, 2008.

  �  Number of shareholders’ complaints received so far : 40

  �  Number resolved to the satisfaction of shareholders : 40

  �  Number of pending complaints : Nil

6. General Meetings 

 Location and time of Company’s last three AGM’s with details of special resolutions passed:

Date September 27, 2006 June 20, 2007 June 13, 2008 
Time 12.30 p.m. 12.00 noon 12.00 noon
Venue Vishnudas Bhave Natyagruh, Sector 16A, 

Vashi, Navi Mumbai – 400 703 
Vishnudas Bhave Natyagruh, Sector 16A, 
Vashi, Navi Mumbai – 400 703

Vishnudas Bhave Natyagruh, Sector 16A, 
Vashi, Navi Mumbai – 400 703

Details of Special 
Resolutions passed in 
the AGM

1. Issue of equity shares under Section 
81 (1A) of the Companies Act, 1956 
(“Act”).

2. Investments in securities, extending 
loans, giving guarantees and providing 
securities under Section 372A of the 
Act.

3. Adoption/Ratification of ‘GTL 
Infrastructure Limited-Employee Stock 
Option Scheme (ESOS 2005) along with 
amendment under Section 81 (1A) of 
the Companies Act, 1956. 

4. Payment of commission to Non- 
Executive Directors of the Company.

1.  Re-appointment of Mr. Prakash Ranjalkar 
as a Whole-time Director for a period of 
three years with effect from April 1, 2007 
and fixing of his remuneration under 
Sections 198, 269, 309 and schedule 
XIII of the Companies Act, 1956.

2. Adoption of ‘GTL Infrastructure Limited-
Employees Stock Option 

 Scheme (ESOS 2005) with certain 
modification under Section 81 (1A) of 
the Companies Act, 1956.

1.  Raising of the Foreign equity investment 
limit upto 74% (direct & indirect) of the 
paid-up capital.

2. Raising of funds by issue of Equity/
Convertible instruments through various 
means (including through QIP) upto 250 
crores Equity Shares. 

3.  Raising of funds through Qualified 
Institutional Placement (QIP) upto 100 
crores Equity Shares. 

� No special resolution was put through postal ballot in the last year.

� Special resolutions are proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.
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7. Disclosures 

 � Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions, that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company:

  The Company does not have any material related party transactions, which may have potential conflict with its interests. In any case disclosures 
regarding the transactions with related parties are given in the Notes to Accounts at Sr. No. 11 of Schedule Q of the Financial Statement. 

 � Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any Statutory 
Authority, on any matter related to Capital Markets during the last three years.

  There has been no instances of Non Compliance by the Company on matter related to Capital Markets during the last three years. 

 �  Details of Compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements: 

  The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

 �  Disclosure on Whistle Blower Policy:

  The Company does not have a Whistle Blower Policy. However, no personnel has been denied access to the Senior Management.

Disclosure on Non-Mandatory requirements:

 �  The Board 

  The Board has a Non-Executive Chairman. The expenses incurred by him in the performance of his duties are reimbursed. No policy has been laid down 
on tenure of Independent Directors.

 �  Remuneration Committee

  The Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the full details of the same is available elsewhere in this report.

 � Shareholders Rights

  The Company is publishing quarterly un-audited financial results in the newspapers and is also displaying it on the Company’s website www.gtlinfra.com, 
apart from displaying in stock exchange website. Accordingly, it does not envisage to send the same separately to the households of the shareholders.

 � Audit Qualifications

  The Company endeavours to maintain a regime of unqualified statements. 

 � Training of Board Members

  Prior to the appointment of the Directors, an invitation letter giving the background of the Company is sent to the Directors. On receiving their consent 
another letter containing the information on the terms of appointment; time commitment expected; powers & duties; special duties/arrangement attaching 
to the position; circumstances in which the office of the Director becomes vacant; expectation regarding involvement with Committee work; remuneration 
and expenses; superannuation arrangements; disclosure of Directors’ interest which might affect their independence; insider trading policy and code of 
conduct etc. is given to the Directors. Arrangements are also made for a presentation/facility visit by the Directors, either before or after their joining the 
Board. 

 � Mechanism for evaluating Non-Executive Board Members

  No policy has been laid down by the Company.

 � Whistle Blower Policy

  The Company does not have any Whistle Blower Policy. However any employee, if he/she so desires, has free access to meet or communicate with the 
Senior Management and report any matter relating to unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct or 
ethics policy. 

 � WTD/CFO Certification

  Whole time Director & Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer have issued necessary certificate pursuant to the provisions of Clause 49 of 
the Listing Agreement and the same is annexed and forms part of the Annual Report. 

 � Declaration regarding Code of Conduct 

  Declaration by Whole time Director confirming compliance with the Code of Conduct as adopted by the Company is annexed and forms part of the Annual 
Report. 
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8. Means of Communication
 � Quarterly results:

  The Company’s quarterly financial statements are generally published in Free Press Journal/Business Standard (English language) and in Mumbai 
Lakshadweep/NavaKaal (local language). The financial statements are also displayed in the website of the Company.

 � Website: 

  http://www.gtlinfra.com.

 � Official news releases and presentation: The Company displays official news releases, presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts 
and other coverage in the above website.

9. Management Discussions and Analysis Report 
 In line with the requirements of Clause 49, the Management Discussion and Analysis is provided under various heads in this Annual Report.

10. General Shareholder Information 

i. AGM: Date, time and venue Friday, the 10th July, 2009; Time at 12.30 P.M.
Venue: Vishnudas Bhave Natyagruh, Sector 16A, Vashi, Navi Mumbai – 400 703.

ii. Financial Calendar
for F.Y. 2009-2010

First Quarter Results
Second Quarter Results

On or before July 31, 2009.
On or before October 31, 2009.

Third Quarter Results 
Fourth Quarter & Audited Annual Results

On or before January 31, 2010.
On or before June 30, 2010.

iii. Date of book closure July 9, 2009 
iv. Dividend Payment No dividend has been declared.
v. Listing on Stock Exchanges Equity Shares listed at Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE).

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB) issued by the Company are listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading 
Limited.

vi. Listing Fees for 2009-10 BSE/NSE listing fees for the financial year 2009-2010 have been paid.
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited Listing fees has been paid.

vii. Stock Codes:

 Stock Exchange Stock Code

 � Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) - Equity Shares 532775
 � National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) - Equity Shares GTLINFRA
 � Equity ISIN INE221H01019
 � Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited FCCB ISIN XS0329208457

viii.    Corporate Identity Number (CIN)            L74210MH2004PLC144367

ix.     Market Price Data 
Monthly high and low of closing quotations and volume of shares on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) 
are given below: 

Month BSE NSE
High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Volume (Nos.) High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Volume (Nos.)

Apr-2008 50.70 44.45 26,708,151 50.85 44.35 31,751,848
May-2008 57.40 48.55 41,073,076 57.55 48.55 55,173,288
Jun-2008 46.30 41.35 14,496,836 46.35 41.20 20,294,095
Jul-2008 43.30 38.20 19,199,986 43.25 38.35 22,824,438
Aug-2008 41.30 37.90 42,412,654 41.45 37.95 57,999,509
Sep-2008 40.20 35.45 28,961,192 40.20 35.35 44,776,159
Oct-2008 38.35 34.75 15,851,429 38.30 34.85 23,413,434
Nov-2008 44.35 35.65 30,689,639 45.75 35.50 46,857,277
Dec-2008 39.15 28.60 15,178,558 39.20 28.65 28,097,559
Jan-2009 32.70 29.15 12,346,200 32.70 29.15 20,294,648
Feb-2009 32.30 28.60 8,031,810 32.25 28.50 13,892,710
Mar-2009 29.50 28.00 10,034,474 29.45 28.00 15,656,285
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x.  Performance in comparison to broad based indices such as BSE Sensex & NSE Nifty

xi. Registrar and Share Transfer Agents GTL Limited - Investor Services Centre, Electronic Sadan II, TTC Industrial Area, MIDC, Mahape, Navi 
Mumbai – 400 710.

GTL Limited is registered with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) as a Category II Share 
Transfer Agent.

xii. Share transfer system in physical form

The Company has in place a proper and adequate share transfer system. GTL Limited has been appointed to ensure that the share transfer system in physical 
form is maintained. 

xiii. Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2009

 a. Distribution of Shareholding according to the size of holding:

No. of Shares No. of Shareowners % of Shareowners Share Amount (Rupees) % to Total
Upto 500 166,453 86.36% 260,260,940 3.19%
501 – 1000 14,378 7.46% 116,267,010 1.43%
1001 – 2000 6,555 3.40% 96,108,710 1.18%
2001 – 3000 2,096 1.09% 52,237,970 0.64%
3001 – 4000 754 0.39% 26,765,630 0.33%
4001 – 5000 721 0.37% 33,702,410 0.41%
5001 – 10000 955 0.50% 70,527,040 0.86%
10001 & ABOVE 833 0.43% 7,505,771,030 91.96%
TOTAL 192,745 100.00% 8,161,640,740 100.00%

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

110

120

130

M
ar
-0
9

Fe
b-
09

Ja
n-
09

D
ec
-0
8

N
ov

-0
8

O
ct
-0
8

Se
p-
08

Au
g-
08

Ju
l-0

8

Ju
n-
08

M
ay
-0
8

A
pr
-0
8
GIL

Sensex
Nifty



336 t h A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 0 8 - 0 9

 b. Distribution of shares by shareholder category:

Category No. of Shareowners No. of Shares Held Voting Strength
Promoters-Directors, their Relatives & Associates (in 5 folios) 2 395,394,918 48.45%
Other Directors, their Relatives 11 7,098,124 0.87%
Bodies Corporate (Domestic)/Trusts 2,721 55,516,648 6.80%
Banks 13 254,425 0.03%
Mutual Funds 5 368,914 0.05%
Financial Institutions (FIs) 7 18,968,626 2.32%
Foreign Institutional Investors (FIIs ) 24 25,281,494 3.10%
Non-Resident Individuals (NRIs)/Foreign Corporate Bodies / Overseas Corporate 
Bodies (OCBs)/Foreign Banks

1,099 234,904,199 28.78%

Resident Individuals 188,860 78,376,726 9.60%
TOTAL 192,742 816,164,074 100.00%

 c. Top 10 Shareholders; 

Sr.
No.

Name(s) of Shareowners Category (As per Depository) Shares %

1. GTL Ltd (Promoter) Domestic Company 289,720,362 35.50%
2. Technology Infrastructure Limited Other Foreign Body (FDI) 207,959,625 25.48%
3. Global Holding Corporation Pvt Ltd (GHC) (Promoter Group)* Domestic Company 105,674,556 12.95%
4. Somerset India Fund Foreign Institutional Investors (FII) 23,050,000 2.85%

Other Foreign Body 210,000
5. Infrastructure Development Finance Company Limited Financial Institution 16,000,000 1.96%
6. Somerset Emerging Opportunities Fund Other Foreign Body 15,660,531 1.92%
7. BCCL Domestic Company 8,820,000 1.08%
8. IL and FS Securities Services Limited Domestic Company 6,826,561 0.84%
9. Manoj Gajanan Tirodkar Director 5,965,283 0.73%

10. Reckon Trading Pvt Ltd Domestic Company 2,978,270 0.36%

 * GHC alongwith its Wholly Owned Subsidiaries namely GAH International Pte. Ltd. and GHC International Ltd. are treated as part of the Promoter Group. 

xiv. Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

 99.93% of the Company’s shares are held in electronic form as on April 29, 2009.

xv. Outstanding FCCBs, Warrants and ESOS conversion date and likely impact on equity

 a. Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs)

  The Company had issued 3,000 FCCBs of the face value of USD 100,000 amounting to USD 300 million on 28.11.07 at the conversion price of Rs. 53.04 
per share. If all the FCCBs are converted into equity shares, the total share capital would go up by Rs. 2,222,850,680 (on account of issue of 222,285,068 
new equity shares). Out of 3,000 FCCB’s issued 582 FCCBs got converted into 43,123,295 equity shares leaving balance of 2,418 FCCBs at the end of 
year 2008-09. 

 b. Convertible Warrants

  The Company had issued 263,650,000 Convertible Warrants at a conversion price of Rs. 40 per share on 30.11.07. Out of 263,650,000 Warrants, 
97,004,985 Warrants got converted into 97,004,985 Equity Shares and 46,150,000 Warrants got forfeited leaving balance of 120,495,015 Warrants 
pending for conversion.

 c. Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS)

  The shareholders have authorised issue of shares, not exceeding 5% of the issued equity capital of the Company, to its employees in the form of stock 
options. As on March 31, 2009 a total of 76 employees (Previous Year 77) hold 16,179,644 stock options (Previous Year 1,77,62,500) as set out in the 
Annexure to the Directors’ Report. As per the Scheme, during the year, 553,056 Options got converted into 553,056 equity shares of the Company.
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xvi. Plant Locations:

 The Company is in the business of providing Network and Telecom Infrastructure through its telecom / allied Infrastructure erected all accross India.

xvii. Address for correspondence GTL Infrastructure Limited
 Registered Office  Maestros House, 
   MIDC Building No.2, Sector 2,
   Millennium Business Park, Mahape,
   Navi Mumbai – 400 710, Maharashtra, INDIA
   Tel.: +91-22-39112300 
   Fax: +91-22-39137440

Investor Correspondence

All shareholders’ complaints/queries in respect of their shareholdings may be addressed to the Investor Service Centre of GTL Limited, Electronic Sadan No. II, 
MIDC, TTC Industrial Area, Mahape, Navi Mumbai - 400710 INDIA. 

Contact Persons: Mr. Nagarajan Iyer, General Manager, Investor Service Centre & Mr. Divesh R. Sawant – Manager, Shares & Systems 
Tel.:+91-22-27612929/27684111 Extn. Nos. 2232-2235 Fax: +91-22-27680171.

Website: www.gtlinfra.com
Email: gilshares@gtlinfra.com

Queries relating to Financial Statements, Company performance etc. may be addressed to:

Mr. Pinakin Gandhi
GTL Infrastructure Limited, 412, Janmabhoomi Chambers, 29, W. H. Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai 400 038
Tel. : +91-22-22715000 Fax +91-22-22715332 Email : pinaking@gtlinfra.com
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Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance

To The Members,

GTL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by GTL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED, for the year ended on March 31, 2009, as 
stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said company with stock exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation 
thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said Clause. It is neither an audit nor 
an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the representations made by the Directors and the 
Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing agreement.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the company.

For Chaturvedi & Shah For Yeolekar & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

R. Koria  S. S. Yeolekar
Membership No. – 35629 Membership No. – 36398

Mumbai
Date: April 29, 2009
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Certificate of Practicing Company Secretary on Secretarial Compliance

To
The Board of Directors,
GTL Infrastructure Limited.

I have examined the registers, records, books and papers of GTL Infrastructure Limited (“the Company”) as required to be maintained under the Companies Act, 
1956 (“the Act”), the rules made there under and also the provisions contained in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company (“the requirements”) 
for the year ended March 31, 2009. Based on our examination as well as information and explanation furnished by the Company to me and the records made 
available to me, I hereby report that:

1. The requisite statutory registers and other records required under the Act and the Rules made there under have been maintained in accordance with the Act 
either in physical or electronic mode as applicable;

2. The requisite forms, returns and documents required under the Act and the Rules made there under to be filed with the Registrar of Companies and other 
authorities have been duly filed as per the requirements of the Act;

3. The requirements relating to the meetings of Directors and its Committee(s) thereof and of the Shareholders as well as relating to the minutes of the proceedings 
have been duly complied with;

4. Due disclosures under the requirements of the statutes have been made by the Company. The Company has also complied with the requirements in pursuance 
of the disclosures made by its Directors;

5. The Company has complied with the provisions of section 293(1)(a) and 293(1)(d) of the Act in respect of monies borrowed from financial institutions and banks 
and falling within the purview of those sections;

6. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 372A in respect of investments made during the financial year ending on March 31, 2009;

7. The Company has, wherever required, obtained the necessary approvals of the Board, Committee thereof, Shareholders or any other authorities as per the 
requirements of the Act;

8. The Company has not defaulted in any of the provisions given under Section 274 (1) (g) of the Act, which would otherwise disqualify the Directors of the 
Company from acting as a Director of any other Company. It may be stated that the Company has not accepted any Fixed Deposits. The Annual Returns and 
the Annual Reports have been filed as required under the Act;

9. The issue and allotment of Equity Shares / Convertible Warrants / FCCBs is/are in conformity with the requirements of Act;

10. The Company has complied with the requirements of the Act, FEMA, RBI Regulations and other allied Rules and Regulations in respect of the Foreign Direct 
Investment received by it.

11. The Company has granted options under the Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOS) for its employees and during the year under review, the Company 
has complied with the relevant provisions of SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 thereafter, in 
respect thereof.

CHETAN A. JOSHI
Practicing Company Secretary
ACS: 20829 / CP: 7744

Mumbai, April 29, 2009
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Certificate of Whole-time Director and Chief Financial Officer on Financial Statements Under Clause 49 of the 
Listing Agreement

We, Prakash Ranjalkar, Whole-time Director and Shishir Parikh, Chief Financial Officer of GTL Infrastructure Limited hereby certify that:

a. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2009 and that to the best of our knowledge and 
belief: 

 i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

 ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable 
laws and regulations. 

b. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the 
Company’s code of conduct. 

c. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control 
systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation 
of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

d. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee that:

 i. there have been no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

 ii. there have been no significant changes in accounting policies during the year; and 

 iii. there have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an 
employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting. 

Place : Navi Mumbai Prakash Ranjalkar Shishir Parikh
Dated : April 29, 2009 Whole-time Director Chief Financial Officer

Declaration of Whole-time Director on Compliance with Code of Conduct Under Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel, which is displayed on the Company’s 
website.

I confirm that the Company has in respect of the Financial Year ended March 31, 2009 received from each Member of the Board and Senior Management Personnel, 
a declaration of compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable to each one of them.

Place : Navi Mumbai  Prakash Ranjalkar
Dated : April 29, 2009  Whole-time Director
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The Information on Directors recommended for Appointment/ Re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting is as under:

Mr. Manoj Tirodkar, Non-Independent Director 

Mr. Tirodkar has been a Member and Chairman of the Board since August 8, 2005. He retires by rotation in the ensuing Annual General Meeting and is eligible for 
re-appointment.

Mr. Manoj Tirodkar, is a first generation entrepreneur and is the Founder, Chairman and Managing Director of GTL Limited (GTL). He is the force behind GTL’s 
success, leading it from the front through his dynamic leadership, strategic vision and ability to manage change. Mr. Manoj Tirodkar has received several recognitions/
awards for his work like CII Young Entrepreneurs Trophy 2001, World Young Business Achiever Award 2000 and Indian Young Business Achiever Award, amongst 
others. The most recent award received being “National Level Entrepreneur Award” from Jagatik Marathi Chamber of Commerce & Industry.

Mr. Manoj Tirodkar is Chairman & Managing Director of GTL Limited, Mr. Manoj Tirodkar holds Directorships in International Global Tele Systems Limited, Mauritius, 
Global Holding Corporation Private Limited, GTL International Limited and Global Trusteeship Company Private Limited.  He is a Member of Shareholders’/Investors’ 
Grievance & Transfer Committee of GTL Limited. In GTL Infrastructure Limited, he is a Chairman of Allotment & Transfer Committee,   Shareholders’/Investors’ 
Grievance Committee, Securities Issuance Committee (FCCB 2007) and Securities Issuance Committee (Preference Issue) of the Board. He holds 59,65,283 shares 
of the Company. He does not hold any stock options under Employee Stock Option Scheme of the Company. 

Mr. Vishwas Pathak, Independent Director

Mr. Pathak has been a Member of the Board since August 8, 2005. He retires by rotation in the ensuing Annual General Meeting and is eligible for re-appointment.

Mr. Vishwas Pathak is a Corporate Consultant providing all types of Corporate and Management Consultancy Services including Legal, Company Secretarial, 
Finance and Banking. He has a rich experience in handling various issues like Foreign Direct Investments, Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds and External 
Commercial Borrowings. He has also handled domestic and international cross border Amalgamations / Mergers and Acquisitions.

He is Member of Audit Committee, Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance Committee, Securities Issuance Committee (FCCB 2007) and Securities Issuance Committee 
(Pref). of the Company. He holds 40,000 shares & 3,60,000 options under Employee Stock Option Scheme of the Company.

Mr. Prakash Samant, Independent Director

Mr. Samant has been a Member of the Board since August 1, 2006. He retires by rotation in the ensuing Annual General Meeting and is eligible for re-
appointment.

Mr. Prakash Samant is a rank holder in Chartered Accountant and Company Secretary Examinations; handled variety of assignments in the areas of finance, legal 
and secretarial functions in diverse industries; has significant experience in investment analysis and due diligence for identifying investment opportunities in India and 
abroad both through private acquisition and divestment process of Govt. of India. His successful assignments include conceptualization to financial closure of large 
projects and finalization of Joint Venture with large MNCs. He has over 26 years of industry experience. Presently, he is serving as the Managing Director of Metmin 
Investment and Trading Pvt. Ltd., an NRI Group of Companies in Mumbai.

He is Managing Director in Metmin Investment & Trading Private Limited and holds Directorships in Metmin Finance and Holdings Private Limited, Metmin Exploration 
Private Limited, Asta India Private Limited, Rinac India Limited and MetTube India Private Limited. He is a Member of Audit Committee in Rinac India Limited. In GTL 
Infrastructure Limited, he is Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee. He does not hold any shares of the Company. 
He holds 4,00,000 options under Employee Stock Option Scheme of the Company.
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Directors’ Report
To
The Members.

Your Directors are pleased to present the Sixth Annual Report along with the Audited Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2009.

1. Financial Results
  Rupees in Crore

 Year Ended
March 31, 2009

Year Ended
March 31, 2008

Year Ended
March 31, 2009

Standalone Standalone Consolidated
Total Income 274.58 152.16 274.66
PBDIT 167.83 92.25 167.82
Depreciation 141.15 82.40 141.15
PBIT 26.68 9.85 26.67
Interest 97.46 29.79 97.48
Profit / (Loss) before tax (70.78) (19.94) (70.81)
Provision for taxation
-Current – – –
-Deferred (74.21) 39.05 (74.21)                
-Fringe Benefit 0.59 0.47 0.59
Net Profit / (Loss) 2.84 (59.47) 2.81

 Figures regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to make them comparable

2. Dividend
 The Company is in the process of rolling out 23,700 towers. The execution of the project in respect of 9,411 sites is at various stages. Thus in view of the 

ongoing project execution, the capital-intensive nature of the business and inadequate profit on acount of high depereciation and interest, no dividend has been 
proposed.

3. Operations
 During the year under review, the Company earned total revenue of Rs. 274.58 Crore (which includes net income from operations of Rs. 220.84 Crore and  

other income of Rs. 53.74 Crore) and capitalized assets worth Rs. 1,097.01 Crore. The revenues are in the form of infrastructure provisioning charges in 
respect of our passive infrastructure. The PBDIT is Rs. 167.83 Crore. While the Company has a depreciation charge of Rs. 141.15 Crore, Interest & Finance 
Charges (Net) is Rs. 97.46 Crore. The operations have resulted in a Profit/(Loss) before tax of Rs. (70.78 Crore). However the operations (before depreciation) 
have resulted in cash profit before tax of Rs. 70.38 Crore. 

 Business Strategy
 As a strategic objective, the Company has been focusing on “Shared Telecom Infrastructure” and pursuing planned rollout of telecom towers across all the 

circles in India to reach its objective. Your Company is following a dual approach of erecting both Build to Suit and Proactive Towers. 

 To take advantage of the macro economic environement and the state of telecom tower sector in India, the Company has evloved its operational strategy 
to include enhancing tenancy, change in mix of Ground Based Towers and Roof Top Towers, introduction of enegy management services, improvement of 
customer mix and providing of high tower build quality along with cost and time savings.

 As a part of the strategy, the Company apart from rolling out a pan India network of 23,700 towers by FY 2011 is also keeping its option open for inorganic 
growth.

 New initiatives
 As outsourcing of passive telecom infrastructure gathers momentum in India, the Company plans to provide a full range of services of maintaining these sites 

on a 24x7 basis. Also during the year 2009 the Company plans to design, implement, upgrade and optimise in-building solutions, the new opportunity in the 
industry. The Company is already in the process of building capabilities for the same.

 Apart from the above, to enable the Company to be ready for changes in the tower sector, the Company is also working on trial projects that entail a combination 
of passive and active infrastructure sharing, in association with telecom operators and other service providers.

 Consequent to the clarification of the Department of Telecommunications in enlarging the scope of IP-I Category providers to include active infrastructure 
together with passive infrastructure, there is a likelihood of operators outsourcing of active infrastructure as it is happening with passive infrastructure. Thus the 
gamut of telecom infrastructure service by IP-I category providers could include providing of dark fibre, right of way, duct space, tower, antenna, feeder cable, 
Node B, radio access network, transmission system etc. 

 Therefore, with a view to enlarge its infrastructure service offerings, the Global Group companies are taking steps to form a company to provide active sharing 
of telecom infrastructure as well. 
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 As the operators might demand combined service offerings, the future of our business in passive could receive a boost if our company forms a strategic alliance 
with such service providers.

 Accordingly, the Board of Directors have commended a resolution for making investment inter-alia in such alliance.

 Future Outlook
 The telecom industry in India is poised for continued growth with robust net additions and Shared Network Infrastructure has an important role to play in 

the coming future. Several new players have entered the telecom sector thereby expanding the list of clientele for the tower companies. In our opinion, the 
subscriber base is expected to touch 600 mn by 2012 requiring an additional 200k towers.

 Allocation of 3G spectrum, implementation of WiMAX on commercial scale and roll-out of rural network will be the immediate growth drivers for the industry. 
The business model will develop as the industry matures and the regulatory issues are simplified.

 With the Company having established project management teams in 19 circles, it  is set for rapid growth and expansion to all 22 circles in the coming year. 
This will improve the time to market for the operators and is expected to improve the occupancy on the Company’s cell sites.

4. Awards and Recognitions
 During the year, the Company was awarded the “Innovative Infrastructure Company of the Year” Award by CNBC TV 18 for pioneering the concept of Shared 

Passive Telecom Infrastructure in the Indian wireless market. This Award along  with the “Best Shared Infrastructure Provider” Award awarded by tele.net in 
2008 and the “Top Independent Infrastructure Provider”  rating given by Voice & Data in 2007 goes to prove the space it has carved out for itself in the telecom 
tower industry, within a short span of 3 years of commencement of passive infrastructure business.

5. Convertible Warrants
 The Company allotted 26.37 Crore Convertible Warrants (Warrants) on November 30, 2007 to the promoter group / predemerger shareholders on preferential 

basis at a conversion price of Rs.40 per share, convertible into one equity share for each warrant within 18 months aggregating to Rs.1054.60 Crore for meeting 
the capital expenditure, acquisition and other expenses. The status of warrants issued is as under:

In Crore

Particulars No. of Warrants No. of Equity Shares
upon conversion

Warrants Allotted 26.37 26.37
Less : Conversions upto 31.03.09/29.04.09 9.70 9.70
Balance as on 31.03.09/29.04.09 16.67* 16.67*

 *During the year, one of the warrant holders, who is entitled to 4,61,50,000 Warrants and had paid the mandatory 10% consideration of Rs 18.46 Crore for 
the same, expressed its inability to pay the remaining amount of Rs 166.14 Crore to exercise the Warrants. Accordingly, on forfeiture of the said warrants, 
the amount paid in respect of the same has been transferred to the Capital Reserve of the Company. Consequently, the number of warrants outstanding for 
conversion is 12.05 Crore. The Promoter Group has paid all calls made todate.

6. Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs)
 During FY 2007-08, the Company raised US $ 300 Million through Zero Coupon FCCBs at a conversion price of Rs. 53.04 per share for meeting the capital 

expenditure, acquisition and other expenses permitted by the regulatory authorities. The status of FCCBs allotted is as under
In Crore

Particulars  No. of FCCBs
(of US $ 1 lac each)

No. of Equity Shares 
upon conversion

FCCBs allotted 3,000 22.23
Less : Conversion upto 31.03.09/29.04.09 582 4.31
Balance as on 31.03.09/29.04.09 2,418 17.92

 The Company has neither offered nor accepted any discount to the conversion price to any warrant or FCCB holder, in spite of market meltdown.

7. Share Capital
 The Equity Share Capital of the Company has increased from Rs. 734.26 Crore as on March 31, 2008 to Rs 816.16 Crore as of date as under:

In Crore

Particulars Share Capital (Rs)
Share Capital as on 31.03.08 734.26
Allotment during the year
Promoter Group / Pre-demerger Shareholders (on conversion of warrants issued on preferntial basis) 61.56
- FCCB Holders (On conversion of FCCBs) 19.79
- ESOS Holders (On conversion of ESOSs) 0.55
Share Capital as on 31.03.09 / 29.04.09 816.16
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8. Liquidity
 The Company has tied up funding for the total project cost of Rs. 7,265 Crore.

 The paid-up share capital of the Company as at March 31, 2009 was Rs. 816.16 Crore. With a view to strengthen the capital base of the Company and 
also to improve on the Debt Equity ratio, the Company has raised US $ 300 million through Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds ( FCCB ), of which FCCBs 
aggregating to US$ 58.2 million have been converted into Equity Shares of the Company at Rs. 53.04 per share, as decided at the time of the Issue. The 
Company has also issued Convertible Warrants worth Rs. 1,054.60 Crore on preferential basis, out of which, on subscription by the warrantholders, 9.70 Crore 
warrants amounting to Rs. 388.02 Crore have been converted into Equity Shares of the Company. Accordingly, the total shareholders’ funds aggregate to
Rs. 1,354.78 Crore.

 Out of the long term funding commitments received from the domestic and international lenders aggregating to Rs. 4,999 Crore, the Company has drawn
Rs. 2,239.75 Crore as at March 31, 2009.

 The Company has Cash and Bank balance of Rs. 1,364.72 Crore as at March 31, 2009.

9. Fixed Deposits
 The Company has not invited or accepted any deposits during the year under review from the public/shareholders.

10. Listing
 The Equity Shares of the Company are listed at Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). Consequent to 

the issue of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) for US $ 300 Million, the said FCCBs of the Company are listed at Singapore Exchange Securities 
Trading Ltd, Singapore.

11. Corporate Governance
 As the Equity Shares of the Company are listed with both BSE and NSE, in terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges (Clause 49) 

compliance report along with the Auditors’ Certificate is provided in the Corporate Governance section of this Annual Report. In line with the requirements of 
Clause 49, the Management Discussion and Analysis is also provided elsewhere in this Annual Report.

12. Particulars of Employees
 In accordance with the provisions of Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 and the rules framed there under, the names and other particulars of 

employees are set out in the Annexure to Directors’ Report.

 In terms of Section 219(1)(b)(iv) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Report and Accounts are being sent to the shareholders excluding the aforesaid Annexure. 
Any Shareholder interested in obtaining copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office. None of the employees listed in the 
said Annexure are related to any Director of the Company.

13. Employee Stock Option Scheme
 With a view to enable its employees to participate in its future growth and success, the Company introduced Employee Stock Option Scheme 2005 (ESOS 2005) in the 

FY 2005-06. The shareholders have authorized issue of shares, not exceeding 5% of issued equity capital of the Company, to its employees in the form of stock options. 
As on March 31, 2009, a total of 76 employees (Previous Year 77) hold 16,179,644 stock options (Previous Year – 17,762,500) as under:

Particulars No of Options
No of Options Outstanding as on April 01, 2008 17,762,500
Add: No of Options issued during the year Nil
Less: No of Options converted during the year 553,056
Less: No of Options lapsed during the year 1,029,800
Options Outstanding as on March 31, 2009 16,179,644

 The Company’s ESOS Scheme 2005 is in three parts viz Part A - Special Grant, Part B - Annual Grant and Part C - Executive Grant. While the vesting in 
respect of Special Grant takes place over a period of 3 years based on the period of holding the Option, the vesting in respect of Annual Grant takes place over 
a period of 3 years based on the number of years of service of the employee and the vesting in respect of Executive Grant under Part C would take place in 
5 years based on the period of holding the Option. On account of the prolonged/staggered vesting period and the global meltdown, the Employees could not 
get the benefit of the Options granted. Accordingly, with a view to retain talent, it is proposed to make suitable amendments to the Scheme inter-alia for early 
vesting of the options granted.

 As required by SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999, the particulars of ESOS are set out in the 
Annexure to Directors’ Report.

14. Particulars regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
 The current expansion of telecom networks is primarily happening in semi urban and rural markets. The challenge for operators lies in managing their power 

needs especially in rural parts of the country, where grid power is available only for a few hours during the day, while in some parts there is no grid connectivity 
at all. Adding to the woes of telecom operators is the efforts required to arrange and transport diesel to the sites and preventing its theft. All this is forcing 
telecom companies to look for rationailising their operating expenses by reducing energy bills. On this background, the Company has taken various Energy 
Conservation Measures as listed out in the Annexure to the Directors’ Report.
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 The Company is engaged in the business of providing Infrastructure Services and has no manufacturing activities. Its projects are under various stages of 
implementation.

 During the period under review, the Company has not absorbed, adopted  and innovated any new technology and it has also not carried out R & D activity.   
Hence the details relating to Technology Absorption are not furnished. 

 The particulars regarding Foreign Exchange Expenditures and Earnings appear as item numbers 22 and 23 respectively in the notes to the accounts. 

15. Directors
 In accordance with the Companies Act, 1956 and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Manoj G. Tirodkar, Mr. Vishwas Pathak and Mr. Prakash 

Samant retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM). Mr. Manoj G. Tirodkar, Mr. Vishwas Pathak and Mr. Prakash Samant being eligible, 
offer themselves for re-appointment. Accordingly, their re-appointments forms part of the notice of the ensuing AGM.

 During the year under review, Mr. G.V.Desai and Mr.S. S. Dawra resigned as Directors as they crossed the age limit then prescribed for retirement . The Board 
places on record its appreciation of the contribution of Mr. G.V. Desai and Mr. S. S. Dawra during their tenure as Directors of the Company. 

 None of the Directors are disqualified from being appointed as Directors as specified in terms of Section 274 (1) (g) of the Companies Act, 1956.

16. Auditors
 M/s. Chaturvedi & Shah, Chartered Accountants and M/s. Yeolekar & Associates, Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Joint Auditors of the Company 

at the 5th Annual General Meeting of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of the 5th AGM until the conclusion of the 6th AGM of the Company.

 The Company has received necessary Certificates from the Joint Auditors pursuant to Section 224(1B) of the Companies Act, 1956, regarding their 
eligibility for re-appointment. Accordingly, the approval of the shareholders for the appointment of  M/s. Chaturvedi & Shah, Chartered Accountants and
M/s. Yeolekar & Associates, Chartered Accountants as Auditors of the Company is being sought at the ensuing AGM.

17. Auditors’ Report
 The Board has duly reviewed the Statutory Auditors’ Report on the Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2009 and wish to report that the same does not have 

any reservation, qualification or adverse remarks.

18. Directors’ Responsibility Statement
 In accordance with the provisions of Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956 and based on the information provided by the management, your Directors 

state that:

 a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 
departures;

 b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent 
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2009 and of the Profit of the Company for the year ended on
that date;

 c) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

 d) the annual accounts of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis.

19. Special Business
 As regards the items of the Notice of the AGM relating to special business, the resolutions incorporated in the Notice and the Explanatory Statement relating 

thereto, fully indicate the reasons for seeking the approvals of members to those proposals. Your attention is drawn to these items and Explanatory Statement 
annexed to the Notice.

20. General
 Notes forming part of the Accounts are self-explanatory.

21. Acknowledgements
 We would like to acknowledge with gratitude, the support and co-operation extended by shareholders, vendors, media, banks and financial institutions 

and look forward to their continued support. We appreciate the continued co-operation received from various regulatory authorities including Department 
of Telecommunications, Department of Economic Affairs, Department of Company Affairs, Registrar of Companies, Reserve Bank of India, Securities and 
Exchange Board of India, Stock Exchanges and Depositories. We also recognize and appreciate the sincere hard work, loyalty and efforts of the employees 
and look forward to their continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mumbai  Manoj G. Tirodkar
April 29, 2009  Chairman
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Annexure to Directors’ Report
ESOS 2005
At the Extraordinary General Meeting held on November 26, 2005, the shareholders of the Company approved issue of shares, not exceeding 5% of the issued equity 
capital of the Company, to its employees in the form of stock options. The exercise price for conversion of options issued prior to listing of the shares of the Company 
is the face value of each share at the time of grant. However, the exercise price for conversion of options issued after listing of the shares of the Company i.e after 
November 9, 2006 will be at a discount up to 25% of the market price (latest available closing price) of each share at the time of grant.

The Company has granted following options each carrying the right to be allotted one equity share (Face Value of Rs.10/- each) at an exercise price mentioned 
against each grant to the employees.

Grant 
No.

Date of
grant

No. of options 
granted

Exercise price

1. 26.11.05 1,550,000 Rs. 10/-
2. 12.02.07 7,490,000 Rs. 29.81 (re-priced at Rs.19.90 per share on account of Right Issue compensation on 09.10.07)
3. 27.02.07 25,000 Rs. 29.81 (re-priced at Rs.19.90 per share on account of Right Issue compensation on 09.10.07)
4. 09.10.07 899,000 Rs. 26.48
5. 09.10.07 1,007,500 Rs. 10/- (Issued to Grant 1 option holders towards Right Issue compensation)
6. 09.10.07 7,190,000 Rs. 19.90 (Issued to Grant 2 option holders towards Right Issue compensation)
7. 09.10.07 25,000 Rs. 19.90 (Issued to Grant 3 option holders towards Right Issue compensation)
8. 11.03.08 1,700,000 Rs. 33.60

The disclosures required as per the SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 are as under:

Sl. No. Particulars Status
A Options Granted 19,886,500
B Pricing formula Prior to Listing: The exercise price for conversion of each option into one equity share is the face 

value of each share at the time of grant. After Listing: The exercise price for conversion of each 
option into one equity share is at a discount up to 25% of the market price (latest available closing 
price) of each share at the time of grant

C Options vested 12,663,300
D Options exercised 1,757,056

E
Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise 
of Options

1,757,056

F Options lapsed 1,949,800
G Variation of terms of Options As stated above
H Money realized by exercise of Options Rs. 22,872,564
I Total number of Options in force 16,179,644
J Employee wise details of Options granted to:

a. Senior Managerial Personnel a. Details are furnished below**
b. Any other employee who receives a grant in any 

one year of Option amounting to 5% or more 
Option granted during that year.

b. NIL

c. Identified employees who were granted Option, 
during any one year, equal to or exceeding 1% of the 
issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and 
conversions) of the Company at the time of grant;

c. NIL

K
Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) pursuant to issue of 
shares on exercise of options calculated in accordance 
with Accounting Standard 20 “Earning per Share”

 F.Y. 08-09 (Rs.) F.Y. 07-08 (Rs.)
EPS Intrinsic Value Method# 0.04 (0.80)
EPS Fair Value Method (0.05) (0.92)
(#For details please refer Schedule Q(4) (i) to the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2009 forming 
part of this Annual Report).

L Disclosure regarding the employee compensation 
Cost

The Company has calculated Employee Compensation Costs on the basis of Intrinsic Value 
method and has amortised Rs. 24,777,336 (Previous Period Rs. 30,286,097) for the year ended 
on March 31, 2009.
However, had the Company followed Fair Value Method for calculating Employee Compensation 
Costs, such cost for the year would have been higher by Rs. 67,235,913 and the Net Profit after 
Taxes would have been lower by the like amount resulting in Loss and consequently, the Basic 
as well as Diluted EPS would have been lower by Rs. 0.09 (#)

M Weighted-Average exercise prices & Weighted-
Average fair values

Weighted-Average exercise prices of the Options outstanding as at the year end - Rs. 20.88 and 
Weighted-Average fair value of options outstanding as at the year end - Rs. 27.02
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Sl. No. Particulars Status
N The description of the method and significant 

assumptions used during the year to estimate the fair 
value of the options.

The Company has adopted Black-Scholes Model for determining the fair value of Options and the 
significant assumptions used are:
(i) Risk-free interest rate : Normally the yield of Government backed securities with maturity 

similar to that of the option is taken into consideration.
(ii) Expected life : Full life of the option is the period upto which it can be exercised.
(iii) Expected volatility : Calculated by using the closing market prices of the company’s shares 

during the last one year.
(iv) Expected dividends : Yield has been calculated on the basis of dividend yield of the financial 

year preceding the date of the grant if any.
(v) The price of the underlying share in market at the time of option grant : Closing market price on 

previous trading day on which the warrants are allotted on the Stock Exchange where the volume 
of shares traded is more.

**List of Senior Managerial Personnel and the Options granted till March 31, 2009 (Cumulative)

Sr. No. Name Options granted till
March 31, 2009

Options outstanding
as on March 31, 2009

1. Dr. Anand Patkar 200,000 200,000
2. Mr. Ashutosh Chandratrey 150,000 150,000
3. Mr. B.R. Chatterji 200,000 200,000
4. Mr. Charudatta Naik 1,825,000 1,300,000
5. Mr. Deepak Vaidya 400,000 260,000
6. Mr. N. Balasubramanian 500,000 500,000
7. Mr. M. R. Bharath 347,750 321,500
8. Mr. Prakash Ranjalkar 6,592,000 6,424,000
9. Mr. Prakash Samant 400,000 400,000

10. Mr. Prasanna Bidnurkar 400,000 400,000
11. Mr. Ravi Pandit 600,000 600,000
12. Mr. Rupinder Singh Ahluwalia 391,250 351,000
13. Mr. Sadanand D. Patil 1,100,000 1,100,000
14. Mr. Savio F. Furtado 200,000 200,000
15. Mr. Shishir Parikh 902,000 608,000
16. Mr. Vishwas Pathak 400,000 360,000 
17. Mr. Vivek Kulkarni 200,000 200,000

Conservation of Energy

The Company is in the business of providing passive infrastructure services. It has taken the following initiatives for conservation of energy in respect of its Telecom Towers.

Sr. No. Particulars Response
a. Energy Conservation measures taken � Installation of Free Cooling/Emergency Free Cooling systems to utilize cool ambient temperatures for 

saving electrical energy consumption of air-conditioning systems.
� Installation of High Efficiency Rectifiers with wide input voltage range SMPS with minimum derating at 

lower input voltages.
� Implemented Stage-wise capacity enhancement with upgradeability as and when site load Increased.

b. Additional Investments and proposals, if 
any, being implemented for reduction of 
consumption of energy

� Specialized training to Operation and Maintenance engineers for generating awareness on Energy 
Management techniques and practices.

� Remote controlling Shelter access
� Tower designs with provision of mounting Remote Radio Head type BTS for saving RF power and 

air-conditioning energy
c. Impact of measures at (a) & (b) for reduction 

of energy consumption and consequent 
impact on the cost of production of goods

With the above solutions, the Company expects to reduce energy costs up to 6 to 8%

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mumbai  Manoj G. Tirodkar
April 29, 2009  Chairman
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Auditors’ Report For The Financial Year Ended on March 31, 2009

To The Members of

GTL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of GTL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED, as at March 31, 2009 and also the Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow 

Statement of the Company for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards generally accepted in India. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 

supporting the amounts and disclosures in financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 

made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 

opinion.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 issued by the Central Government of India in terms of Sub-section (4A) of Section 227 of the 

Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

4. Further to our comments in Annexure referred to in para 3 above, we report that:

 a) We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account, as required by law, have been kept by the Company, so far as appears from our examination of such books;

 c) The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

 d) In our opinion the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report comply with the mandatory Accounting 

Standards referred to in Sub-section (3C) of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;

 e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2009 and taken on records by the Board of Directors, we report 

that none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2009, from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of Section 274 

of the Companies Act, 1956.

 f) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts read together with the significant 

accounting policies and notes thereon, in particular Note No. 5 of Schedule Q regarding the accounting treatment of redemption premium on Foreign 

Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB), give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 

in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

  (i) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2009;

  (ii) in the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date; and

  (iii) in the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

For Chaturvedi & Shah For Yeolekar & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

R. Koria S. S. Yeolekar
Partner Partner
Membership No. – 35629 Membership No. – 36398

Mumbai 
Date: April 29, 2009
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Annexure to the Auditors’ Report (Referred to in Paragraph 3 of our Report of even date)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 issued by Central Government of India in terms of Section 227 (4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, and 

on the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate, we further report that:-

i. In respect of its fixed assets:

 a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets on the basis of available 

information.

 b. As explained to us, the Company has physically verified certain assets, in accordance with a phased program of verification, which in our opinion is 

reasonable, having regard to the size of the Company. No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

 c. During the year, the Company has disposed of certain Fixed Assets. However it has no effect on the going concern status of the Company.

ii.  In respect of its inventories:

 a. As explained to us, inventories have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals.

 b. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the 

management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

 c. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of inventory records, we are of the opinion that the 

Company is maintaining proper records of inventory. As explained to us, there were no material discrepancies noticed on physical verification of 

inventories as compared to the book records.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted or taken any loans, secured or unsecured to or from companies, firms, 

or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 and accordingly the clause 4(iii) of the Companies (Auditor’s 

Report) Order, 2003 is not applicable to the Company.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the 

Company and the nature of its business for the purchase of inventory, fixed assets and also for the sale of services. During the course of our audit, we have 

not observed any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in internal control system.

v. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no contracts or arrangements referred to in section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 that 

need to be entered in the register required to be maintained under that section.

vi. According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence directives issued by the Reserve 

Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 58A and 58AA of the Companies Act, 1956 and the rules framed there under are not applicable for the year under 

audit.

vii. In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size and nature of its business.

viii. The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under Section 209 (1) (d) of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of any of the services 

provided by the Company.
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ix. According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory dues:

 a. The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income tax, 

Sales tax, Wealth tax, Service tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities during the year.

 b. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of such statutory dues were outstanding as at 

March 31, 2009 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

 c. The disputed statutory dues aggregating to Rs. 2,29,19,695, that have not been deposited on account of disputed matters pending before appropriate 

authorities are as under:

Name of the Statute Nature of the Dues Period to which 
the amount relates

Amount (in Rs.) Forum where dispute
is pending

The Punjab VAT Act, 2005 Sales Tax 2007-08 1,65,683 Deputy Excise & Taxation Commissioner (Appeal)

The Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 Sales Tax 2008-09 1,81,28,394 Deputy Commissioner of Taxes (Appeal)

The Assam Entry Tax Act, 2008 Entry Tax 2008-09 46,25,618 Deputy Commissioner of Taxes (Appeal)

Total 2,29,19,695  

x. The Company has accumulated losses at the end of the financial year, which is less than fifty percent of its net worth. The Company has not incurred cash 

losses during the financial year covered by the audit and in the immediately preceding financial year.

xi. Based on our audit procedures and information and explanations given by the management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in 

repayment of dues to financial institutions, banks or bond holders.

xii. In our opinion and according to the explanations given to us and based on the information available, no loans and advances have been granted by the 

Company on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

xiii. In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi/mutual benefit fund/society. Therefore the provisions of clause 4 (xiii) of the Companies (Auditor’s 

Report) Order, 2003 is not applicable to the Company.

xiv. The Company has maintained proper records of transactions and contracts in respect of shares and other securities and timely entries have been made 

therein. The investments are held by the Company in its own name.

xv. The Company has given corporate guarantees by way of pledging it’s fixed deposits with banks for loans taken by others from their bank. On the basis of 

representation and explanations provided to us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions there of are not prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the 

Company.

xvi. The Company has raised new term loans during the year. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us the term 

loans outstanding at the beginning of the year and those raised during the year were prima facie been either used for the purpose for which they were raised 

or pending utilisation been temporarily placed as fixed deposits with banks.

xvii. On the basis of review of utilization of funds, which is based on overall examination of the Balance Sheet of the Company as at March 31, 2009, related 

informations as made available to us and as represented to us, by the management, we are of the opinion, that funds raised on short term basis have not prima 

facie been utilized for long term purposes.

Annexure to the Auditors’ Report (Referred to in Paragraph 3 of our Report of even date)
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Annexure to the Auditors’ Report (Referred to in Paragraph 3 of our Report of even date)

xviii. During the year the Company has made preferential allotments of 2,60,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, against the conversion of preferential convertible 

warrants, at a price of Rs. 40 per share to a Company covered under register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. According to the 

information & explanation given to us these shares are issued in terms of Securities And Exchange Board Of India (Disclosure And Investor Protection) 

Guidelines, 2000 and accordingly, the prices at which these shares are issued are not prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

xix. During the year, the company has not issued any debenture and hence clause 4 (xix) of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 is not applicable to the 

Company.

xx. We have verified the end-use of money raised by issue of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds and the same is disclosed by the management in Note no. 5 of 

Schedule Q to accounts.

xxi. To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the Company was noticed or reported 

during the course of our audit.

For Chaturvedi & Shah For Yeolekar & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

R. Koria S. S. Yeolekar
Partner Partner
Membership No. – 35629 Membership No. – 36398

Mumbai 
Date: April 29, 2009
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Schedule
Rupees 

As At
March 31, 2009

Rupees Rupees 

As At
March 31, 2008

Rupees

SOURCES OF FUNDS:
Shareholders’ Funds

Share Capital A  8,161,640,740  7,342,637,280 
Preferential Convertible Warrants  481,980,060  912,835,760 
Reserves and Surplus B  4,904,204,677  2,013,667,842 

13,547,825,477  10,269,140,882 
Loan Funds

Secured Loans C  22,397,551,379  13,990,047,138 
Unsecured Loans D  13,078,932,880  10,766,850,000 

 35,476,484,259  24,756,897,138 
Deferred Tax Liability (Net)  –  742,097,689 
(Refer Note No 13 of Schedule Q)

Total  49,024,309,736  35,768,135,709 

APPLICATION OF FUNDS:
Fixed Assets E

Gross Block  24,291,122,540  13,344,107,171 
Less : Depreciation  2,716,045,993  1,310,834,305 
Net Block  21,575,076,547  12,033,272,866 
Capital Work-in-progress  10,467,261,705  7,904,951,325 

 32,042,338,252  19,938,224,191 
Investments F  332,005  663,363,000 

Current Assets, Loans and Advances G
Inventories  24,500,239  – 
Sundry Debtors  550,387,416  514,433,323 
Cash and Bank Balances  13,647,236,690  13,731,617,281 
Loans and Advances  5,946,380,166  2,407,442,110 

 20,168,504,511  16,653,492,714 
Less: Current Liabilities and Provisions H

Current Liabilities  3,811,729,888  2,161,919,082 
Provisions  286,678,868  265,014,965 

4,098,408,756 2,426,934,047

Net Current Assets  16,070,095,755  14,226,558,667 

Miscellaneous Expenditure (to the extent not written off or adjusted) I  –  – 

Profit and Loss Account  911,543,724  939,989,851 

Total  49,024,309,736  35,768,135,709 

Significant Accounting Policies P
Notes on Accounts Q

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For CHATURVEDI & SHAH For YEOLEKAR & ASSOCIATES  MANOJ TIRODKAR PRAKASH RANJALKAR
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants  Chairman Whole-time Director

R. KORIA S. S. YEOLEKAR  SHISHIR PARIKH RAVIKUMAR VEMULAKONDA
Partner Partner  Chief Financial Officer Joint Company Secretary

Mumbai
Date : April 29, 2009

Balance Sheet As At March 31, 2009
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Schedule

For the Year
ended on

March 31, 2009
Rupees

For the Year
ended on

March 31, 2008
Rupees

INCOME
Net Income from Operations J  2,208,369,860  1,245,815,168 
Other income K  537,433,779  275,751,035 

Total  2,745,803,639  1,521,566,203 
EXPENDITURE

Infrastructure Operation & Maintenance Cost (Net) L  643,671,625  250,212,414 
Employee’s Cost M  170,251,011  181,977,742 
Administration and Other Expenses N  253,548,238  166,872,823 
Interest and Finance Charges (Net) O  974,580,977  297,926,489 
Depreciation E  1,411,513,993  824,016,831 

Total  3,453,565,844  1,721,006,299 
PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE TAX  (707,762,205)  (199,440,096)
LESS :  

Provision for Taxation
- Current Tax –   –
- Deferred Tax (742,097,689)  390,545,081 
- Fringe Benefit Tax 5,889,357  4,717,046 

 (736,208,332)  395,262,127 

PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAX  28,446,127  (594,702,223)

ADD : 
Balance as per last Balance Sheet (939,989,851) (345,287,628)
Balance carried to Balance Sheet  (911,543,724)  (939,989,851)

EARNINGS PER SHARE (in Rupees-Per Equity Share of Rs.10 each)
- Basic  0.04  (0.80)
- Diluted  0.04  (0.80)
(Refer Note No. 12 of Schedule Q)

Significant Accounting Policies P
Notes on Accounts Q

Profit and Loss Account For The Year Ended March 31, 2009

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For CHATURVEDI & SHAH For YEOLEKAR & ASSOCIATES  MANOJ TIRODKAR PRAKASH RANJALKAR
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants  Chairman Whole-time Director

R. KORIA S. S. YEOLEKAR  SHISHIR PARIKH RAVIKUMAR VEMULAKONDA
Partner Partner  Chief Financial Officer Joint Company Secretary

Mumbai
Date : April 29, 2009
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Rupees

As At
March 31, 2009

Rupees Rupees 

As At
March 31, 2008

Rupees

SCHEDULE A : SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED:
 3,000,000,000 (Previous Year 3,000,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each  30,000,000,000  30,000,000,000 
 50,000,000 (Previous Year 50,000,000) Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each  5,000,000,000  5,000,000,000 

 35,000,000,000  35,000,000,000 
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP:
 816,164,074 (Previous Year 734,263,728) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-up  8,161,640,740  7,342,637,280 

Total  8,161,640,740  7,342,637,280 
Notes:
i. During the year, the Company has allotted
 (a) 553,056 (Previous Year 661,500) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each on exercise  

of option by ESOS holders, 
 (b) 19,783,365 (Previous Year 23,339,930) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each to FCCB 

holders on exercise of option at a Premium of Rs. 43.04 per share and 
 (c) 61,563,925 (Previous Year 35,441,060) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each to 

Preferential Convertible Warrant holders at a Premium of Rs. 30 per share.
ii. The ESOS holders, FCCB holders and Preferential Convertible Warrant holders 

have the option to exercise/convert ESOS, FCCB and Warrants into 16,179,644 
(Previous Year 17,762,500), 179,161,773 (Previous Year 198,945,138) and 120,495,015 
(Previous Year 228,208,940) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each respectively.

iii. Refer Note No. 4, 5, and 6 of Schedule Q for terms of ESOS, FCCB and Preferential 
Convertible Warrants respectively.

SCHEDULE B : RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Reconstruction Reserve
Balance as per last Balance Sheet
Created in terms of the Scheme of Arrangement  199,302,121  199,302,121 

Capital Reserve
Balance as per last Balance Sheet  – –
On Forfeiture of Preferential Convertible Warrants during the year  184,600,000  –  
(Refer Note No. 6 of Schedule Q)  184,600,000  – 

Securities Premium Account
Balance as per last Balance Sheet  1,780,033,190 –   
Add: On Exercise of option by:
- Foreign Currency Convertible Bond holders  851,476,030  1,004,550,588 
- Preferential Convertible Warrant holders  1,846,917,750  1,063,231,800 
- ESOS holders  7,093,664  – 

 4,485,520,634  2,067,782,388 
Less: Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds and Rights Issue Expenses  22,536,285  287,749,198 

 4,462,984,349  1,780,033,190 
Employee Stock Option Outstanding

Balance as per last Balance Sheet  75,322,980  50,279,100 
Add:  Granted during the year  –  25,043,880 
Less: Options exercised/lapsed during the year  5,303,719  – 

 70,019,261  75,322,980 
Less:Deferred Compensation Expense

Balance as per last Balance Sheet  40,990,449  46,232,666 
Add:  Granted during the year – 25,043,880
Less: Amortised/lapsed during the year  28,289,395  30,286,097

 12,701,054  57,318,207  40,990,449  34,332,531 
Total  4,904,204,677  2,013,667,842 

Schedules Forming Part of The Balance Sheet
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Schedules Forming Part of The Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE C : SECURED LOANS
Rupee Term Loans
 From Banks 20,520,042,209  11,132,411,189
 From Financial Institutions 499,100,000  –

    21,019,142,209  11,132,411,189
Foreign Currency Loans
 From Financial Institutions 1,378,194,600  1,264,000,000
 From Banks –  1,593,123,973
    1,378,194,600  2,857,123,973
Vehicle Loans  214,570  511,976

    Total  22,397,551,379  13,990,047,138

Notes:
i Term Loans from Banks & Financial Institutions are secured by way of
 (a) Hypothecation  by a first pari-passu charge on all movable assets,
  both  present  and future, including  first  floating  charge on all the
  current assets of the Company.
 (b) Mortgage by first pari-passu charge basis on all immovable assets,
  both present and future, of the Company.
ii Vehicle loan is secured by way of hypothecation of the specific vehicle
 financed.

SCHEDULE D : UNSECURED LOANS
Long Term Loans
 Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds  12,615,745,740  10,766,850,000
Short Term Loans
 Buyer’s Credit (Covered under Letter of Credit issued by the Bankers)  463,187,140  –

    Total  13,078,932,880  10,766,850,000

Notes:
Zero Coupon Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) of USD 
100,000 each are:
i Convertible by the holders at any time on and after January 27, 2008 

but prior to close of business on November 22, 2012. Each bond will 
be converted into fully paid up 74,095 Equity Share with par value of 
Rs. 10 per share at an initial Conversion Price of Rs. 53.04 per share.

ii Redeemable, in whole but not in part, at the option of the Company 
at any time on or after November 28, 2010 but not less than seven 
business days prior to maturity date subject to fulfillment of certain 
terms and obtaining requisite approvals.

iii Redeemable on maturity date at 140.4064 percent of its principal 
amount, if not redeemed or converted earlier.

iv 2,418 (Previous year 2,685) Zero Coupon Foreign Currency Convertible 
Bonds (FCCBs) of USD 100,000 each are Outstanding as on 
31st March, 2009.

Rupees 

 As At
March 31, 2009

Rupees Rupees

 As At
March 31, 2008

Rupees 
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Schedules Forming Part of The Balance Sheet
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Schedules Forming Part of The Balance Sheet

As at
March 31, 2009

As at
March 31, 2008

SCHEDULE F : INVESTMENTS

Number Face Value

March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008 

Long Term Investments (Unquoted)
In Equity Shares of Subsidiary Company - Fully Paid up
Towers Worldwide Limited  1 – USD 1  332,005  – 
(Formerly known as Spark India 2 Limited)

In Other Equity Shares (Non Trade) - Fully Paid up
Global Projects & Aviation Private Limited.
(Formerly known as GTL Management Services & 
Projects Pvt. Limited)

 –  336,300 10  –  332,005  3,363,000  3,363,000 

Current Investments (Non-Trade, Unquoted)
In Unit of Mutual Funds

AIG Short Term Fund Inst. Growth  –  50,000 1000  –  50,000,000 
HDFC Fmp 90d January 2008(VI)- Wholesale Plan Growth  – 10,000,000 10  – 100,000,000 
Lotus India Fmp 3 Months Series XXIV Growth  – 12,000,000 10  – 120,000,000 
Lotus India Fmp 3 Months Series XXV Growth  –  6,000,000 10  –  60,000,000 
Lotus India Fmp 1 Month Ser.VII-Growth  –  5,000,000 10  –  50,000,000 
UTI Fixed Income Interval Fund - Monthly Series  – 11,613,503 10  – 120,000,000 
UTI Fixed Maturity Plan HFMP 03/08 -I-Inst. Growth Plan  – 10,000,000 10  – 100,000,000 
UTI Fixed Maturity Plan- QFMP - Inst. Growth Plan  – 6,000,000 10  –  –  60,000,000  660,000,000 

Total  332,005  663,363,000 

Note:
1. Aggregate Value Of Investments
 Quoted Investments :
  Book Value Nil  Nil
  Market Value Nil  Nil
 Unquoted Investments:
  Book Value 332,005  663,363,000
2. Investments Purchased And Sold During The Year
 Mutual Fund Units Face Value  Nos. Cost
 AIG India Liquid Fund Institutional Growth 1000 38,116 40,000,000
 AIG India Liquid Fund Super Institutional Growth 1000 230,692 250,000,000
 Bharti Axa Liquid Fund Institutional Growth Plan 1000 392,965 400,000,000
 Birla Cash Plus- Inst. Prem. - Growth 10 58,165,325 760,100,000
 Birla Sun Life Floating Rate Fund - Short Term - Growth 10 11,331,245 152,800,000
 Birla Sunlife Cash Manager - Inst. Plan- Growth 10 7,067,786 95,900,000
 Birla Sunlife Cash Plus - Inst. Prem. - Growth 10 165,777,274 2,264,884,682
 Birla Sunlife Floating Rate Fund - Short Term - IP - Growth 10 16,565,294 183,420,000
 BOB Liquid Fund - Growth Plan 10 7,107,811 105,500,000
 Canara Robeco Floating Rate Short Term Growth Fund 10 11,719,341 147,476,000
 Canara Robeco Liquid Fund - Institutional - Growth 10 64,022,236 975,400,000
 Canara Robeco Liquid Super Instt. Growth Fund 10 187,726,984 1,932,386,000
 DBS Chola Liquid Inst. Plus - Cumulative 10 17,651,400 296,126,000
 DBS Chola Liquid Super Inst. Plan - Cumulative 10 174,512,328 2,139,800,000
 DBS Chola Short Term Floating Rate - Cumulative 10 11,879,432 146,100,000

 (Amount In Rupees)
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 Mutual Fund Units Face Value Nos. Cost
 Dspml Fmp 1m Series 1 - Growth - Mat. Date 06-Oct-08 10 25,000,000 250,000,000
 Dws Insta Cash Plus Fund - Inst. Plan - Growth 10 11,559,291 147,700,000
 Dws Insta Cash Plus Fund - Super Institutional Plan Growth 10 302,771,520 3,385,306,566
 Fidelity Cash Fund - Inst. - Growth 10 3,965,874 44,300,000
 Fidelity Cash Fund (Super Institutional) - Growth 10 35,519,665 412,600,000
 HDFC Cash Management Fund - Savings Plan - Growth 10 91,929,879 1,655,200,000
 HDFC Liquid Fund - Premium Plan - Growth 10 367,045,115 6,358,274,289
 HDFC Liquid Fund - Premium Plus Plan - Growth 10 103,593,255 1,781,430,100
 HSBC Cash Fund - Institutional - Growth 10 7,646,722 100,000,000
 HSBC Cash Fund - Institutional Plus - Growth 10 49,511,460 650,700,000
 HSBC Floating Rate Fund - Long Term Plan - Institutional Option - Growth 10 22,771,536 300,085,579
 ICICI Prundential Institutional Liquid Plan Super Insitutional Growth 10 259,372,761 3,177,028,000
 ING Liquid Fund Inst. - Growth Option 10 15,346,427 200,000,000
 ING Liquid Fund Super Institutional - Growth Option 10 124,272,863 1,535,700,000
 JM High Liquidity Fund - Super Institutional Plan - Growth(94) 10 3,824,823 50,000,000
 JP Morgan India Liquid Fund - Growth Plan 10 34,385,512 371,223,000
 JP Morgan India Liquid Fund - Super Inst. Growth Plan 10 356,062,128 3,962,798,774
 JP Morgan India Liquid Plus Fund - Growth Plan 10 13,814,290 149,554,889
 JP Morgan India Liquid Plus Fund - Super Inst. Growth Plan 10 45,551,415 509,538,316
 Kotak Floater Short Term - Growth 10 61,388,486 836,900,000
 Kotak Liquid (Institutional Premium) - Growth 10 52,774,546 893,032,000
 LIC Mf Floating Rate Fund - Short Term Plan - Growth Plan 10 623,415,836 8,602,645,372
 LIC Mf Liquid Fund - Growth Plan 10 876,584,440 13,692,720,870
 Lotus India Liquid Fund - Inst. Growth 10 32,391,135 366,000,000
 Lotus India Liquid Fund - Super Institutional Growth 10 130,990,673 1,511,300,000
 Mirae Asset Liquid Fund Super Inst. - Growth Option 1000 191,803 200,000,000
 Principal Cash Management Fund Smp Inst Option Growth Plan 10 6,492,227 82,400,000
 Principal Cash Management Fund - Liquid Option Instl. Prem. Plan - Growth 10 356,800,277 4,746,145,155
 Reliance Floating Rate Fund - Growth Plan - Growth Option 10 452,979,559 6,197,200,285
 Reliance Liquid Fund - Cash Plan Growth Option - Growth Plan 10 10,465,652 150,000,000
 Reliance Liquid Fund - Treasury Plan - Institutional Option - Growth Option - Growth Plan 20 41,978,838 870,000,000
 Reliance Liquid Plus Fund Inst. Option - Growth Plan 1000 17,990 20,004,692
 Reliance Liquidity Fund - Growth Option 10 205,110,902 2,660,467,057
 SBI Magnum Insta Cash Fund - Cash Option 10 158,240,250 3,444,517,000
 SBI Magnum Insta Cash Fund Liquid Floater Plan - Growth 10 55,443,864 833,800,000
 SBI Premier Liquid Fund - Inst. - Growth 10 7,697,341 100,000,000
 SBI Premier Liquid Fund - Super Institutional - Growth 10 57,239,848 787,100,000
 Standard Chartered Liquidity Manager - Plus - Growth 1000 51,567 60,000,000
 Standard Chartered Liquidity Manager - Plus - Growth 10 1,031,984 13,000,000
 Sundaram Bnp Paribas Floater St Inst. - Growth 10 2,478,433 31,200,000
 Sundaram Bnp Paribas Money Fund Super Inst. Growth 10 2,911,174 50,000,000
 Tata Floating Rate Short Term Inst. Plan - Growth 10 39,225,331 502,800,000
 Tata Liquid High Investment Fund - Growth 1000 136,440 185,000,000
 Tata Liquid Super High Inv. Fund - Appreciation 1000 1,068,048 1,647,601,300
 Templeton Floating Rate Income Fund Short Term Plan Institutional Option - Growth 10 122,144,282 1,585,360,320
 Templeton Fr Income Fund St Plan Retail Option - Growth 10 3,643,012 53,600,000
 Templeton India Treasury Management A/c Super Institutional Plan - Growth 1000 636,424 802,800,000
 UTI - Liquid Plus Fund Institutional Plan Growth Option 1000 196,971 226,954,593
 UTI Liquid Cash Plan Institutional - Growth Option 1000 1,878,808 2,657,280,951
 UTI Money Market Fund - Growth Plan 20 228,660,653 5,516,809,728

 (Amount In Rupees)
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SCHEDULE G : CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
(A) CURRENT ASSETS
 i) Inventories (as taken, valued and certified by the management)
  Stores, Spares and Consumables  24,500,239  –

 ii) Sundry Debtors (unsecured)
  Due for a period exceeding six months
   - Considered Good 7,589,273  67,611,868
   - Considered Doubtful 33,955,642  –
   Less: Provision for doubtful debts 33,955,642  –

   7,589,273  67,611,868
   - Others
   - Considered Good 542,798,143  446,821,455
   - Considered Doubtful 3,396,155  –
   Less: Provision for doubtful debts 3,396,155  –
    542,798,143  446,821,455

     550,387,416  514,433,323
Notes :
Sundry Debtors include Rs. 272,189,826 (Previous Year Rs. 216,652,684)
due for recoveries on account of diesel, electricity, etc.

 iii) Cash and Bank Balances
  Cash on hand 819,273  370,482
  Balances with Banks (Including Cheques in hand)
   - In Current Accounts
     With Scheduled Banks 956,074,229  1,153,413,140
     With Non-Scheduled Banks* 1,213,952,141  1,088,749,576
   - In Fixed Deposit Accounts
     With Scheduled Banks 10,258,229,521  7,065,619,984
     With Non-Scheduled Banks* 10,403,786  3,983,135,126
   - In Margin Accounts with Scheduled Banks 729,440,388  179,518,431
   - In Fixed Deposits for Debt Service Reserve Account with
     Scheduled Banks 478,317,352  260,810,542

   (Refer Note No 7 of Schedule Q)  13,647,236,690  13,731,617,281

    Total  14,222,124,345  14,246,050,604

 *Julius Bear, Maximum Balance Rs. 8,090,380,269 (Previous Year Rs. 7,779,596,150)

(B) LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured, Considered good unless otherwise stated)
 Subsidiary Company  3,271,718,997  –
 Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for the value to be received
 (Subject to confirmation)
  - Considered Good 422,182,451  574,013,291
  - Considered Doubtful 205,124  –
  Less: Provision for doubtful debts 205,124  – 

     422,182,451  574,013,291
  Inter Corporate Deposits  –  487,500,000
  Deposits  160,554,422  101,593,956
  Cenvat / Service Tax input credit entitlements  1,826,098,079  1,148,045,404
  Advance Taxes (including Fringe Benefit Tax) (Net)  265,826,217  96,289,459
    Total  5,946,380,166  2,407,442,110

    Total  20,268,504,511  16,653,492,714

Schedules Forming Part of The Balance Sheet

Rupees

 As At
March 31, 2009

Rupees Rupees

 As At
March 31, 2008

Rupees 
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SCHEDULE H : CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
(A) CURRENT LIABILITIES
 Acceptances  2,630,699,554  1,330,095,268
 Sundry Creditors
 Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises –  –
 (Refer Note No 19 of Schedule Q)
 Dues to others 255,756,219  169,352,880
    255,756,219  169,352,880
 Unclaimed Share Application Money *  54,649  –
 Unearned Income  138,518,453  92,382,022
 Deposits Received  261,366,078  200,915,399
 Other Liabilities  513,318,482  358,600,783
 Interest accrued but not due on Loans  12,016,453  10,572,730

   Total  3,811,729,888  2,161,919,082

(B) PROVISIONS
 For Gratuity  –  325,992
 For Leave Encashment  4,635,942  3,133,368
 Provision for Fringe Benefit Taxes  5,889,357  4,717,046
 Provision for mark to market losses on Derivative Contracts    276,153,569  256,838,559

   Total  286,678,868  265,014,965

   Total  4,098,408,756  2,426,934,047

* Amount does not include amount, due and outstanding, to be credited to
 Investor Education & Protection Fund

SCHEDULE I : MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)

 Share Issue Expenses –  21,619,600
 FCCB Issue Expenses 22,536,285  271,347,808
   22,536,285  292,967,408

 Less: Written off to the Profit and Loss Account –  5,218,210

   22,536,285  287,749,198

 Less: Written off against Securities Premium Account 22,536,285  287,749,198

   Total  –  –

Rupees

 As At
March 31, 2009

Rupees Rupees

 As At
March 31, 2008

Rupees 
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    For the Year For the Year
    ended on ended on
    March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
    Rupees Rupees
SCHEDULE J : NET INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
 Service Charges from Telecom/Network Infrastructure Facilities 2,453,613,806 1,388,567,321
 Equipment Provisioning 9,221,950 9,995,196
    2,462,835,756 1,398,562,517
 Less: Service Tax Recovered 254,465,896 152,747,349
    Total 2,208,369,860 1,245,815,168

SCHEDULE K : OTHER INCOME
 Profit on Sale of Fixed Asset (Net) – 61,231,163
 Profit on Sale of Long Term Investments (Net) 3,363,000 950,001
 Interest Received 533,878,311 212,755,198
 [Tax Deducted at Source Rs. 18,756,587 (Previous Year Rs. 19,595,011)]
 Balances Written Back 188,106 673,580
 Miscellaneous Income 4,362 141,093
    Total 537,433,779 275,751,035

SCHEDULE L : INFRASTRUCTURE OPERATION & MAINTENANCE COST (NET)
 Site Rentals (Net) 161,477,654 69,371,299
 Power and Fuel Charges 859,279,003 421,472,628
 Repairs and Maintenance to Plant and Equipments 5,808,382 3,786,698
 Other Operating Expenditure 448,967,154 176,919,167
    1,475,532,193 671,549,792
 Less: Recovered from Customers (Net of Service Tax) 831,860,568 421,337,378
    Total 643,671,625 250,212,414

SCHEDULE M : EMPLOYEES COST (Including Managerial Remuneration)
 Salaries and Allowances 131,545,813 139,154,925
 Contribution to Providend Fund, Gratuity Fund and Other Funds 6,519,334 6,137,235
 Employee Stock Option cost 24,777,336 30,286,097
 Employee Welfare and other amenities 7,408,528 6,399,485
    Total 170,251,011 181,977,742

Schedules Forming Part of The Profit and Loss Account
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Schedules Forming Part of The Profit and Loss Account

    For the Year For the Year
    ended on ended on
    March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
    Rupees Rupees

SCHEDULE N : ADMINISTRATIVE, SELLING AND OTHER EXPENSES
 Administrative Expenses
 Rent  28,696,213 14,216,322
 Rates and Taxes 9,770,752 3,087,269
 Electricity 7,524,099 6,040,254
 Repairs and Maintenance
 - Office Building 279,268 384,464
 - Office Equipments 2,322,183 1,614,500
 - Others  2,490,961 1,677,578
 Insurance Premium 10,358,178 5,490,882
 Communication Cost 11,278,041 7,617,604
 Travel and Conveyance 24,482,222 29,941,349
 Legal and Professional Charges 23,622,890 35,182,600
 Payment to Auditors 4,780,000 1,919,000
 Office Expenses 16,280,144 19,619,681
 Printing and Stationery 11,677,223 6,962,964
 Directors’ Sitting Fees 890,950 1,609,387
 Miscellaneous Expenses 38,830,819 20,240,939

 Selling Expenses
 Advertisement and Business Promotion 7,043,202 6,049,820

 Other Expenses
 Bad Debts 12,486,178 – 
 Provision for Doubtful Debts 37,556,922 – 
 Loss on Sale of Fixed Asset (Net) 3,177,993 – 
 Miscellaneous Expenditure Written Off – 5,218,210

    Total 253,548,238 166,872,823
SCHEDULE O : INTEREST AND FINANCE CHARGES (Net)
 Interest
 - On Term Loans 1,002,632,836 364,389,250
 - On Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds – 144,713
 - Others  4,151,285 5,356,698
 Bank and Financial Charges 18,359,611 9,569,279
    1,025,143,732 379,459,940
 Less :
 Foreign Exchange Gain (Net) 50,562,755 81,533,451

    Total 974,580,977 297,926,489
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2009 AND
THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2009

SCHEDULE P: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:
 The Accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis under historical cost convention on accrual basis and in accordance with the generally accepted 

accounting principles in India and the provisions of Companies Act, 1956.

2. Use of Estimate:
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and 

assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period. The difference between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known/ 
materialised.

3. Revenue Recognition:
 a. Revenue from Infrastructure/Equipment provisioning are recognised in accordance with the Contract / Agreement entered into. Revenues are recognised 

when it is earned and no significant uncertainty exists as to its ultimate collection and includes service tax, wherever applicable.
 b. Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis. Dividend is considered when the right to receive is established.

4. Fixed Assets:
 a. Fixed Assets are stated at cost net of cenvat less accumulated depreciation, amortisation and impairment loss, if any. All costs, including borrowing costs 

up to the date asset is put to use are capitalised.
 b. The Fixed Assets at the cellular sites, which are put to use in the first fifteen days of a month are capitalised on the fifteenth day of that month, whereas, 

if they are put to use in the second half of a month, they are capitalised on the last day of that month.
 c. Expenses incurred relating to project, prior to commencement of commercial operation, are considered as pre-operative expenditure and shown under 

Capital Work-In-Progress.

5. Depreciation:
 a. Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided using the Straight Line Method based on the useful life as estimated by the Management or at the rates 

as provided in the Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956, whichever is higher. Accordingly, the estimated useful life of Fixed Assets is as shown 
below:

Economic Useful Life (Years)
 Buildings : 58
 Plant and Machinery

 Towers (including foundation and related Civil Work) : 20
 Shelters : 20
 Network Operation Assets : 4 to 10
 Air Conditioners, Generators and Electrical Equipments : 9
 Electrical Equipments (Others) : 6
 Computers : 3
 Office Equipments : 3 to 5

 Furniture and Fittings : 5
 Vehicles : 5

 b. The leasehold improvements have been depreciated over lease period.
 c. In respect of additions forming an integral part of existing assets depreciation has been provided over residual life of the respective fixed assets.
 d. In respect of Fixed Assets whose actual cost does not exceed Rs. 5,000, depreciation is provided at 100% in the year of addition.
 e. In respect of Fixed Assets acquired upon demerger pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement between GTL Infrastructure Limited and GTL Limited, 

depreciation is provided for the balance period of economic useful life of those assets referred to in (a) above.

6.  Intangible Assets:
 Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortisation. Software which is not an integral part of the related hardware is classified as 

an intangible asset and is amortised over the useful life of three years.

7.  Investments:
 Current Investments are carried at the lower of cost or quoted / fair value computed scrip wise, Long Term Investments are stated at cost. Provision for 

diminution in the value of long-term investments is made only if such decline is other than temporary.
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8.  Inventory of Stores, Spares and Consumables:
 Inventory of stores, spares and consumables are accounted for at costs, determined on weighted average basis, or net realisable value, whichever is less.

9. Foreign Currency transactions:
 a. Transactions in Foreign Currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.

 b. Monetary items denominated in foreign currency at the Balance Sheet date are restated at the exchange rates prevailing at the Balance Sheet date. In 
case of the items which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the exchange rates prevailing at the Balance Sheet date and 
rate on the date of the contract is recognised as exchange difference. The premium on forward contracts is amortised over the life of the contract.

 c. Non monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

 d. Any gain or loss on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on restatement is recognised in the Profit and Loss account.

10. Employee Benefits:
 a. Short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Profit and Loss account of the year in which the related 

service is rendered.

 b. Post employment and other long term employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the Profit and Loss account for the year in which the employee 
has rendered services. The expense is recognised at the present value of the amount payable determined using actuarial valuation techniques. Actuarial 
gains and losses in respect of post employment and other long term benefits are charged to the Profit and Loss account.

 c. In respect of employee’s stock options, the excess of market price on the date of grant over the exercise price is recognised as deferred employee 
compensation expense amortised over vesting period.

11. Borrowing costs:

 Borrowing costs that are attributable to acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset (net of income earned on temporary deployment of funds) are capitalised 
as a part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All other borrowing 
costs are charged to Profit and Loss account.

12. Leases:
 In respect of operating leases, lease rentals are expensed with reference to the terms of lease and other considerations except for lease rentals pertaining to 

the period up to the asset put to use, which are capitalised.

13. Provision for Current and Deferred Tax:
 a. Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.

 b. Deferred tax resulting from the timing differences between taxable and accounting income is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that are enacted 
or substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date. The deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is a virtual 
certainty that the assets will be realised in the future.

 c. Fringe Benefit Tax: Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax is made in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.

14. Impairment of Assets:
 An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment loss is charged to the Profit and Loss account 

in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the 
estimate of recoverable amount.

15. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:
 Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is 

probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are neither 
recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

16. Financial Derivatives Hedging Transactions:
 In respect of derivatives contracts, premium paid, provision for losses on restatement and gains / losses on settlement are recognised in the Profit and Loss 

account.

17. Issue Expenses:
 Expenses related to issue of equity and equity related instruments are adjusted against the Securities Premium Account.

18. Provision for Doubtful Debts and Loans and Advances:
 Provision is made in the accounts for doubtful debts and loans and advances in cases where the management considers the debts, loans and advances, to be 

doubtful of recovery.
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SCHEDULE Q: NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

1. Contingent Liabilities:
 (Amount in Rupees)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars As At 
March 31, 2009

As At 
March 31, 2008

a. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for (Net of Advances) 

 16,030,962,514  2,109,888,496 

(cash outflow is expected on execution of such capital contracts, on progressive basis)
b. Contingent Liabilities not provided for :

i.  Bank Guarantees
 (Bank guarantees are provided under contractual / legal obligation)

110,080,894  25,459,540

ii. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 2,479,568  1,811,840
iii. Premium on Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds issued [Refer Note 5 below] 5,097,568,687  4,350,496,478
iv. Disputed liability in respect of Income-tax demand (including interest) matter under appeal 

(Amount deposited Rs. 232,664)
232,664  232,664

v. Disputed Liability in respect of Sales Tax Matter under appeal (Amount deposited 
Rs.3,055,230)

25,974,925  220,913

vi. Disputed liability in respect of Custom Duty (Amount deposited Rs.9,294,371) 9,294,371  NIL

 No cash outflow is expected in near future in respect of Note number 1(b) (i), (ii), (iii) and (v).

2. The Company has entered into Master Services Agreement (MSA) with the Telecom Operators for a period of 10-15 years. Invoices are raised on these 
operators for provisioning fees and recovery of pass through expenses as part of the said MSA which are recoverable in full. The Company has requested for 
the balance confirmations from Sundry Debtors as on March 31, 2009 which are awaited. The Company has obtained balance confirmations from major Sundry 
Creditors.

3.  In the Opinion of the Management, the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are approximately of the value stated, if realised in the ordinary course of 
business. 

4.  Employee Stock Option Scheme:
 a. The Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2005 (ESOS) was first time introduced and implemented during the Accounting Period 2005-06 for which the 

approval was obtained from the shareholders at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on November 26, 2005.

 b. On November 26, 2005, the Company granted 1,550,000 Options (“Grant 1”) convertible into Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each to 15 employees. The 
Exercise Price of the Options was fixed at Rs. 10 each for conversion into one Equity Share of the Company.

  During the year, out of above Options 9,000, Options have been lapsed. (Previous year Options lapsed NIL).

 c. On February 12, 2007 and February 27, 2007, the Company granted 7,490,000 Options (“Grant 2”) and 25,000 Options (“Grant 3”), both, convertible into 
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, to 42 employees. The Exercise Price of the Options was fixed at Rs. 29.81 each for conversion into one Equity Share of 
the Company.

  Pursuant to clause 15 of Employee Stock Option Scheme 2005, on October 9, 2007, consequent to the issue of shares on Rights basis, the Exercise 
Price of the Options in respect of (“Grant 2”) and (“Grant 3”) was refixed to Rs.19.90 in place of Rs.29.81.

  During the year, out of Options so granted under (“Grant 2”), 497,250 Options have been lapsed. (Previous year Options lapsed 600,000).

 d. On October 9, 2007, the Company granted 650,000 Options (“Grant 4”), convertible into Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each to 3 employees. The Exercise 
Price of the Options was fixed at Rs. 26.48 each for conversion into one Equity Share of the Company.

 e. On March 11, 2008, the Company granted 1,700,000 Options (“Grant 8”), convertible into Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each to 5 employees. The Exercise 
Price of the Options was fixed at Rs. 33.60 each for conversion into one Equity Share of the Company.

 f. On October 9, 2007, with a view to compensate the Option holders for the Rights Issue, the Company has granted-

   � (“Grant Number 5”) consisting of 1,007,500 Options at the exercise price of Rs. 10 each against (“Grant 1”).

   � (“Grant Number 6”) consisting of 7,190,000 Options at the modified exercise price of Rs. 19.90 each in place of Rs. 29.81 each against (“Grant 2”).

   � (“Grant Number 7”) consisting of 25,000 Options at the modified exercise price of Rs. 19.90 each in place of Rs. 29.81 each against (“Grant 3”).
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  During the year out of the Options granted under (“Grant 5”), 9,000 Options have been lapsed. (Previous year Options lapsed NIL).

  During the year out of Options granted under (“Grant 6”), 497,250 Options have been lapsed. (Previous year Options lapsed 300,000).

  The above Options vest over a period ranging from one to three years as follows:

Percent to Vest Period of vesting from date of grant
35% At the end of Twelve months
35% At the end of Twenty Four months

Balance At the end of Thirty Six months
 g. On October 9, 2007, the Company also granted 249,000 Options (“Grant 4”), convertible into Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, to 58 employees. The 

Exercise Price of the Options was fixed at Rs. 26.48 each for conversion into one Equity Share of the Company.

  During the year out of above Options 17,300 Options have been lapsed. (Previous year Options lapsed 20,000).

  These Options vest over a period ranging from one to five years as follows:

Number of Years of Service of Employee in the 
Company and GTL Limited (*)

as on date of allotment

Conversion at the end of 
12

Months
18

Months
24

Months
30

Months
36

Months

IIV 5 years 100% - - - -

IIV 4 years 80% 20% - - -

IIV 3 years 60% 20% 20% - -

IIV 2 years 40% 20% 20% 20% -

IIV 1 year 20% 20% 20% 20% 20%
  (*) As per the scheme, number of years of service of an employee in GTL Limited (Associate of the Company) is also considered for calculation of 

aforesaid period.

 h. All the Options granted till date have an exercise period of Thirty Six months from the date of their vesting.

 i. The Company applies intrinsic-value based method of accounting for determining Employee Compensation Expense for its ESOS. Had the Employee 
Compensation Expense been determined using the fair value approach, the Company’s Net Profit and Loss and basic and diluted earnings per share as 
reported would have reduced to the proforma amounts as indicated below :

(Amount in Rupees) 

Particulars 2008-09 2007-08
Net Profit/(Loss) as Reported  28,446,127  (594,702,223)
Less : Employee Compensation Expense  67,235,913  91,692,462 
Adjusted Proforma  (38,789,786)  (686,394,685)
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share as reported  0.04  (0.80)
Proforma Basic and Diluted Earnings per share  (0.05)  (0.92)

 j. The following table summarises the Company’s Stock Options activity for ESOS:
(Amount in Rupees)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars 2008-09 2007-08

No. of Shares Weighted 
average 

exercise price

No. of Shares Weighted 
average 

exercise price
a. i.  Outstanding at the beginning of the year 17,762,500  20.80 8,522,500  27.47 

ii.  Granted during the year  NIL  NIL  10,821,500  21.70 
iii.  Lapsed during the year  (1,029,800)  14.93  (920,000)  20.05 
iv.  Exercised during the year  (553,056)  17.83  (661,500)  10.00 
v.  Expired during the year  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 

b. Outstanding at the end of the year  16,179,644  16.57  17,762,500  20.80 
c. Exercisable at the end of the year  10,906,244  14.97  5,264,000  19.10 
d. Weighted average remaining contractual life (in years)  2.56  3.68 
e. Weighted average Intrinsic value of Options granted  7.15  7.17 
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5.  Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds:

 In the year 2007-08, the Company issued 3,000 Zero Coupon Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) of USD 100,000 each. The bonds are redeemable 
only if there is no conversion of the bonds earlier. Hence, the payment of premium on redemption is contingent in nature, the outcome of which is dependent 
on uncertain future events and accordingly, no provision is considered necessary nor has been made in the accounts in respect of such premium. In case the 
bonds are redeemed then in such scenario the Company intends to adjust the premium on redemption to Securities Premium Account. The pro-rata premium 
as on March 31, 2009 works out to Rs. 1,363,627,510.

 The details of bonds conversion during the year ended on March 31, 2009 is as under:

Particulars Amount of FCCB
in USD

Number of Equity
Shares @ Rs. 10 each

Balance of FCCBs
in Rupees

Balance As At April 1, 2008 268,500,000 198,945,138 10,766,850,000
Less : Converted during the Year 26,700,000 19,783,365 1,049,309,680
Less : Exchange Difference NIL NIL (2,898,205,420)
Balance As At March 31, 2009 241,800,000 179,161,773 12,615,745,740

 Rs. 6,568,655,443 out of the proceeds of the above Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds have been used for capital expenditure, issue expenses and advance 
to wholly owned subsidiary for acquisitions. Pending utilisation, the balance of Rs. 9,400,218,142 has been kept in Fixed Deposits with banks.

6. In the year 2007-08 the Company had issued 263,650,000 Preferential Convertible Warrants (Exercise Price of Rs. 40 each) on preferential basis to various 
investors, against which it has received Rs. 4,546,779,460 till March 31, 2009.  Each warrant carries a right to convert the same into one Equity Share of
Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs. 30 each (as per the formula prescribed under the SEBI (DIP) guidelines) over a period of 18 months from date of allotment.

 Of the above 97,004,985 warrants have been converted into the Equity Shares and a warrant holder holding 46,150,000 warrants who had paid 10% 
consideration of Rs.184,600,000 expressed inability to pay remaining  amount of Rs. 1,661,400,000. Accordingly, the Board of Directors forfeited the same 
and credited the amount received against those warrants to Capital Reserve.

 Rs.481,980,060 being 10% of the exercise price for 120,495,015 warrants outstanding as on March 31, 2009 has been shown as “Preferential Convertible 
Warrants’’ in the Balance Sheet.

 Out of the Preferential Convertible Warrants proceeds of Rs. 4,546,779,460, Rs. 1,949,440,000 has been utilised towards passive telecom infrastructure as on 
March 31, 2009. The unutilised proceeds have been invested in Fixed Deposits with the banks.

7. Balances with Banks include deposits with Indian banks aggregating to Rs. 4,585,787,689 (Previous Year Rs. 466,010,417) pledged towards Debt Service 
Reserve Account, Margin Money for Letter of Credits, Bank Guarantees, Security for borrowings by capital goods vendors and Sales Tax Authorities.

8. Prior Period Items:

 Prior Period Items included in the Profit and Loss Account:
(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Schedule No. 2008-09 2007-08
Income/ Expenses :
Infrastructure Operation and  Maintenance Cost L  75,000  NIL 
Salaries and Allowances M  2,222  828,897 
Rent N  4,000  25,000 
Electricity N  32,517  NIL 
Communication Cost N  73,966  NIL 
Travel and Conveyance N  393,367  157,408 
Legal and Professional Charges N  347,218  NIL 
Miscellaneous Expenses N  765,669  333,056 
Foreign Exchange (Gain) / Loss O  NIL  (7,450,000)
Total :  1,693,959  (6,105,639)
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9.  Employee Benefits:
 As per Accounting Standard 15 “Employee Benefits” the disclosure of Employee Benefit, as defined in Accounting Standard are given below :

 Defined Contribution Plan
 (Amount in Rupees)

Particulars 2008-09 2007-08
Employer’s Contribution to Provident fund 8,472,927 6,917,666
Employer’s Contribution to Pension fund 1,380,971 1,211,785
Total : 9,853,898  8,129,451

 Defined Benefit Plan

 The employee’s Gratuity Fund Scheme, which is a defined benefit plan, is managed by the Trust maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India [LIC]. 
The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as 
giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation for compensated 
absences is recognised in same manner as gratuity.

 a. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation

 (Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Gratuity Funded Compensated Absences 
Unfunded

2008-09 2007-08 2008-09 2007-08
Defined Benefit Obligation at beginning of the year  2,949,302  1,041,989  3,133,368  528,742 
Current Service Cost  2,207,831  993,875  2,330,173  489,460 
Current Interest Cost  235,944  83,359  250,669  42,299 
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss  (410,062)  830,079  227,540  3,151,917 
Benefits paid  NIL  NIL  (1,305,808)  (1,079,050)
Defined Benefit Obligation at end of the year  4,983,015  2,949,302  4,635,942  3,133,368 

 b. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of the plan assets

 (Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Gratuity Funded
2008-09 2007-08

Fair Value of Plan Asset at beginning of the year  2,623,310  1,667,172 
Expected Return on Plan Assets  209,865  133,374 
Actuarial Gain/ (Loss)  349,396  75,477 
Contributions  3,786,172  747,287 
Benefits paid  NIL  NIL
Fair Value of Plan Asset at the end of the year  6,968,743  2,623,310

 c. Reconciliation of present value of obligations and fair value of Plan Assets

 (Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Gratuity Funded Compensated Absences 
Unfunded

2008-09 2007-08 2008-09 2007-08
Fair Value of Plan Asset at the end of year  6,968,743  2,623,310  NIL  NIL
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at end of the year  4,983,015  2,949,302  4,635,942  3,133,368 
Liability/ (Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet  (1,985,728)  325,992  4,635,942  3,133,368 
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 d. Expense recognised during the year

 (Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Gratuity Funded Compensated Absences
Unfunded

2008-09 2007-08 2008-09 2007-08
Current Service Cost  2,207,831  993,875  2,330,173  489,460 
Interest Cost  235,944  83,359  250,669  42,299 
Expected Return on Plan Assets  (209,865)  (133,374)  NIL  NIL
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss  (759,458)  754,602  227,540  3,151,917 
Net Cost Recognised in Profit and Loss Account  1,474,452  1,698,462  2,808,382  3,683,676 

 e.  Assumptions used to determine the defined benefit obligations

 (Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Gratuity
Funded

Compensated Absences
Unfunded

2008-09 2007-08 2008-09 2007-08
Mortality Table (LIC) (1994-96 Ultimate)     
Discount Rate (p.a.) 8% 8% 8% 8%
Estimated rate of return on Plan Assets (p.a.) 8% 8% Not Applicable Not Applicable
Expected rate of increase in salary (p.a.) 5% 5% 5% 5%

  The estimates of rate of increase in salary considered in actuarial valuation, taking into account, inflation, seniority, promotion, attrition and other relevant 
factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by Actuary.

10. Segment Reporting:
 The Company is in the business of providing “Shared User Infrastructure” facilities on “Build, Own and Operate” basis and as such there are no separate 

reportable segments. The Company’s operations are predominantly only in India.

11. Related Party Disclosures:
 a.  Related Parties:

I. Subsidiary Company

Towers Worldwide Limited (with effect from May 12, 2008)

II. Associates 

a. GTL Limited
b. Technology Infrastructure Limited

III. Key Managerial Personnel 

a. Mr. Manoj Tirodkar, Chairman
b. Mr. Prakash Ranjalkar, Whole-time Director
c. Mr. Shishir Parikh, Chief Financial Officer

IV. Enterprise in which Key Managerial Personnel III (a) has significant influence 

Global Holding Corporation Private Limited
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 b. Transactions with related parties:
(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Subsidiary  Company Associates Key Managerial Personnel Enterprise in which Key 
Managerial Personnel has 

significant influence 
2008-09 2007-08 2008-09 2007-08 2008-09 2007-08 2008-09 2007-08

[with I above] [with II (a) above] [with III  above] [with IV above]
Investments  332,005  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 
Advance to Subsidiary 4,282,212,800  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 
Refund of advance 1,773,809,535 NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 
Interest received  61,377,243  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 
Purchase of Fixed Assets  NIL  NIL 8,935,266,301 7,282,846,350  NIL  NIL  4,166,700  NIL 
Refund of advance  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  500,000  NIL 
Sale of Fixed Assets  NIL  NIL  11,890,671 56,221,264  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 
Net Income from Services / 
Equipment Provisioning

 NIL  NIL 737,892,210  593,534,136  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 

Reimbursement of expenses from  NIL  NIL  23,574,212  7,609,869  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 
Infrastructure Operation and 
Maintenance Cost

 NIL  NIL 162,754,359  290,457,278  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 

Rent  NIL  NIL 2,691,513  3,588,684  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 
Legal and Professional Charges  NIL  NIL 8,655,210  1,649,307  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 
Reimbursement of expenses to  NIL  NIL  72,850,330  192,636,743  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 

[with II (b) above]
Equity Shares Allotted  NIL  NIL 1,422,557,000  NIL  NIL  NIL 1,040,000,000 1,417,642,400
Amounts Received against 
Preferential Convertible Warrants

 NIL  NIL 1,280,301,300  200,000,000  NIL  NIL  936,000,000 1,945,878,160 

Salaries and Allowances (*)  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  11,036,843  9,885,884  NIL  NIL 
Director’s sitting fees paid (**) NIL NIL NIL NIL  180,000  210,000 NIL NIL

Outstanding As At March 31,
2009

March 31, 
2008

March 31, 
2009

March 31, 
2008

March 31, 
2009

March 31,
2008

March 31,
2009

March 31, 
2008

[with I above] [with II (a) above] [with III above] [with IV above]
Investments  332,005  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 
Advance given to subsidiary 3,271,718,997  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 
Interest Receivable  46,670,110  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 
Security Deposit received  NIL  NIL 2,500,000 2,500,000  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 
Security Deposit given  NIL  NIL 1,600,000 1,600,000  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 
Sundry Debtors  NIL  NIL  NIL 378,551  NIL  NIL  NIL  NIL 
Capital Advances (Net)  NIL  NIL 306,607,521  221,256,940  NIL  NIL  NIL  4,666,700 

[with II (b) above]
Preferential Convertible Warrants 
(Advance for Conversion)

 NIL  NIL  57,744,300  200,000,000  NIL  NIL  424,235,760  528,235,760 

(*) Salaries and Allowances includes Rs. 4,683,135 (Previous Year  Rs. 4,956,400) paid to Mr. Prakash Ranjalkar (Whole-time Director) and Rs. 6,353,708  (Previous 
Year Rs. 4,929,484)  paid to Mr. Shishir Parikh (Chief Financial Officer).
(**) Director’s Sitting Fees paid is amount paid to Mr. Manoj Tirodkar Rs. 180,000 (Previous Year Rs. 210,000).
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12.  Earning Per Share (Basic and Diluted):
 (Amount in Rupees)

Particulars 2008-09 2007-08
Net Profit after tax attributable to Equity Shareholders for Basic EPS  28,446,127  (594,702,223)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for Basic EPS  763,453,188  743,630,866 
Basic Earning Per Share of Rs.10 Each  0.04  (0.80)

Net Profit after tax attributable to Equity Shareholders for Diluted EPS  28,446,127  (594,702,223)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for Basic EPS  763,453,188  743,630,866 
Add:- Potential Equity Shares (Options)  4,494,864  11,976,693 
Number of Shares used for Calculating Diluted EPS  767,948,052  755,607,559 
Diluted Earning Per Share of Rs.10 Each  0.04 (0.80)

 The effect of Warrants and Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds on the Earning Per Share are anti-dilutive and hence, the same is ignored for the purpose of 
calculation of dilutive earning per share.

13. Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets):
 As required by Accounting Standard 22 on “Accounting for Taxes on Income”, Deferred Tax is comprising of the following items :

 (Amount in Rupees)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2009

As at
March 31, 2008

Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Related to Fixed Assets  921,061,541  743,285,222 
Total  921,061,541  743,285,222 

Deferred Tax Assets:
Unabsorbed Depreciation  1,124,377,725  NIL   
Disallowance under Income Tax  21,557,584  1,187,533 
Total  1,145,935,309  1,187,533 
Net Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset)  (224,873,768)  742,097,689 

 As at March 31, 2009, the Company has Net Deferred Tax Assets of Rs. 224,873,768. In the absence of virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income 
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised, the same has not been recognised in the books of account in line with Accounting 
Standard 22 dealing with “Accounting for Taxes on Income”.

14. Managerial Remuneration:
 a. Details of Payments and Provisions on account of Remuneration to Managerial personnel is as under :

 (Amount in Rupees)

Particulars 2008-09 2007-08
Salary (including allowances)  4,467,135  4,740,400 
Contribution to Provident Funds  216,000  216,000 
 Total :  4,683,135  4,956,400 

 Liability for Gratuity and Leave Encashment is provided on actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the amount pertaining to directors is not ascertainable 
and, therefore, not included above.

 b. The computation of net profit for the purpose of director remuneration under Section 349 of Companies Act, 1956 have not been enumerated since no 
commission has been paid to any of the directors. Fixed managerial remuneration has been paid to the whole-time director as per Schedule XIII of the 
Companies Act, 1956.

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2009 AND
THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2009
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15.  Auditor’s Remuneration:
 (Amount in Rupees)

Particulars 2008-09 2007-08
Audit Fees  2,400,000  1,200,000 
Tax Audit Fees  600,000  400,000 
Certification Fees  1,280,000  234,000 
Other Matters  500,000  85,000 
Total :  4,780,000  1,919,000 

16. Details of Net Pre-Operative Expenses considered as Capital Work-In-Progress:
(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars 2008-09 2007-08
Opening Balance  1,231,326,220  815,327,848
Add :
Expenditure Incurred during the year

Infrastructure Operation and Maintenance Cost  547,318,363  121,533,591
Salaries and Allowances  76,248,067  52,519,419
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds  3,939,658  2,681,853
Rent  81,756,222  23,104,581
Insurance  2,657,872  8,862,261
Communication Cost  6,180,860  6,268,326
Travel and Conveyance  35,307,026  25,588,246
Legal and Professional Charges  334,214,138  110,166,859
Stamp Duty and Registration Charges  8,156,285  4,484,794
General and Administrative Expenses  313,208,225  113,322,027
Interest on Term Loans  1,033,730,068  567,066,403
Interest Others  434,791,916  64,789,920
Bank and Financial Charges  423,714,582  62,239,023

 4,532,549,502  1,977,955,151
Less: 

Interest Received  61,927,031  19,303,117
(TDS Current Year 14,032,665 Previous Year 4,374,086)
Dividend on Current Investments  NIL  7,094,517
Profit on Sale of Current Investments  93,171,557  182,746,202

 4,377,450,914  1,768,811,315
Less : Amount allocated to Fixed Assets  2,963,445,253  537,485,095
Closing Balance  1,414,005,661  1,231,326,220 

17. In accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS-28) on “Impairment of Assets” the management during the year carried out an exercise of identifying the 
assets that may have been impaired in respect of each cash generating unit. On the basis of this review carried out by the management, there was no 
impairment loss on fixed assets during the year ended March 31, 2009.
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2009 AND
THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2009

18. Financial and Other Derivative Instruments:
 a. Derivative contracts entered into by the Company and outstanding as on March 31, 2009:

  For Hedging Currency and Interest rate related risks:

 (Amount in Rupees)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2009

As at
March 31, 2008

Forward Contract  465,411,909      NIL 
Currency Swaps  1,000,000,000  1,350,000,000 
Options  NIL  911,473,054 

 b. All derivative and financial instruments acquired by the Company are for hedging purpose only.

 c. Net Foreign Currency exposures that are not hedged by derivative instruments or Forward Contracts as at March 31, 2009 amount to Rs. 3,472,121,392 
(Previous Year Rs. 206,070,860).

 d.  Expenditure on account of premium on forward exchange contracts to be recognised in the Profit and Loss account of subsequent accounting period 
aggregates to Rs.1,744,555 (Previous Year Rs. 24,420,767).

19. Disclosure in accordance with Part I of Schedule VI of Companies Act, 1956 in respect of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises :

  (Amount in Rupees)

Sr.
No.

Particulars As at
March 31, 2009

As at
March 31,2008

a. Principal amount remaining unpaid NIL NIL
b. Interest due thereon NIL NIL
c. Interest paid by the Company in term of Section 16 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 

Act, 2006
NIL NIL

d. Interest due and payable for the period of delay in payment NIL NIL
e. Interest accrued and remaining unpaid NIL NIL
f. Interest remaining due and payable even in succeeding years NIL NIL

 This information as required to be disclosed has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the 
Company. 

20. Value of imports calculated on C.I.F. basis:
 (Amount in Rupees)

Particulars 2008-09 2007-08
Capital Goods 158,747,112 320,132,515

21.  Stores and Spares Consumed:

Particulars 2008-09 2007-08
Rupees % of Total 

consumed
Rupees % of Total 

consumed
Imported NIL NIL NIL NIL
Indigenous 223,064 100 NIL NIL
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2009 AND
THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2009

22. Expenditure in Foreign Currency:
 (Amount in Rupees)

Particulars 2008-09 2007-08
Interest  3,311,079  40,296,770 
Bank and Other Charges  94,126,082  6,982,228 
Foreign Travel  1,497,413  2,340,135 
Professional and Consultancy  7,287,803  NIL 
FCCB Issue Expenses  10,787,500  223,346,907 
Others  756,056  535,476 
Total:  117,765,933  273,501,516 

 The above expenditure includes amounts capitalised as project development expenses and / or adjusted against Securities Premium Account.

23. Earnings in Foreign Currency: 
 (Amount in Rupees)

Particulars 2008-09 2007-08
Interest received 406,848,019 115,039,992

24. Operating lease:

 The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases for premises and network sites. These lease agreements provide for 
cancellation by either parties thereto as per the terms and conditions of the agreements.

25. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India vide its Letter Number 47/04/2009-CL-III dated January 21, 2009 issued under Section 212 (8) of the 
Companies Act, 1956 has exempted the Company from attaching the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss account of it’s subsidiary under Section 212 (1) of the 
Companies Act, 1956.

26. In accordance with Clause 32 of Listing Agreement the details of advance is as under :

 a.  To Tower Worldwide Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary closing balance as on March 31, 2009 is Rs.3,271,718,997. Maximum balance outstanding 
during the year was Rs.4,282,212,800.

 b.  None of the loanee’s have made, per se, investment in the shares of the Company.

 c.  As per the Company’s policy loans to employees are not considered in ‘a’ above.

27. The previous year’s figures, wherever necessary, have been regrouped, reclassified and recast to make them comparable with those of the current year.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For CHATURVEDI & SHAH For YEOLEKAR & ASSOCIATES  MANOJ TIRODKAR PRAKASH RANJALKAR
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants  Chairman Whole-time Director

R. KORIA S. S. YEOLEKAR  SHISHIR PARIKH RAVIKUMAR VEMULAKONDA
Partner Partner  Chief Financial Officer Joint Company Secretary

Mumbai
Date : April 29, 2009
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Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended March 31, 2009

 For the Year
ended on

 March 31, 2009 
Rupees

 For the Year
ended on

March 31, 2008
Rupees 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before tax as per Profit and Loss Account  (707,762,205)  (199,440,096)
ADJUSTED FOR
Net Prior Year Adjustments  1,693,959  (6,105,639)
Depreciation  1,411,513,993  824,016,831 
Loss/(Profit) on sale of fixed asset  3,177,993  (61,231,163)
Profit on sale of Investments  (3,363,000)  (950,001)
Interest Income  (533,878,311)  (212,896,291)
Interest and Finance charges  1,025,143,732  379,459,940 
Balances Written back (net)  (188,106)  (673,580)
Provision for Wealth Tax  50,000  156,850 
Employee Stock Option Cost  24,777,336  30,286,097 
Foreign Exchange (Gain)/Loss (Net)  (50,562,755)  (81,533,451)
Bad Debts  12,486,178  5,218,210 
Provision for Doubtful Debts/Advances  37,556,922  – 
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGE  1,220,645,736  676,307,707 
ADJUSTMENTS FOR
Trade and Other Receivables  339,938,101  (1,960,128,177)
Inventories  (24,500,239)  – 
Trade Payables  1,669,153,631  673,771,509 
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS  3,205,237,229  (610,048,961)
Net Prior Year Adjustments  (1,693,959)  6,105,639 
Direct taxes paid / Refund  (179,284,550)  (75,266,591)
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  3,024,258,720  (679,209,913)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets and Capital Work-in-progress  (14,409,797,537)  (10,867,875,042)
Sale of Fixed Assets  2,626,667,789  367,029,902 
Investment in Subsidiary  (332,005)  – 
Advance to Subsidiary  (3,271,718,997)  – 
Purchase of Current Investments  (94,257,971,517)  (42,136,597,605)
Sale of Current Investments  95,017,869,074  42,971,273,045 
Realised gain on settled Derivative Contracts/Currency Swap Arrangement  –  465,722,097 
Movement in Loans (Net)  487,500,000  – 
Interest Income  445,070,910  212,896,291 
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (13,362,712,283)  (8,987,551,312)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Issue of Shares/Preferential Convertible Warrants  2,227,133,864  5,407,007,122 
Issue Expenses  (22,536,286)  – 
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings  12,867,811,223  18,578,351,255 
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings  (4,524,175,380)  – 
Short Term Loans (Net)  338,103,775  – 
Interest and Finance charges  (2,915,071,820)  (1,073,555,286)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES  7,971,265,376  22,911,803,091 
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Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended March 31, 2009

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For CHATURVEDI & SHAH For YEOLEKAR & ASSOCIATES  MANOJ TIRODKAR PRAKASH RANJALKAR
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants  Chairman Whole-time Director

R. KORIA S. S. YEOLEKAR  SHISHIR PARIKH RAVIKUMAR VEMULAKONDA
Partner Partner  Chief Financial Officer Joint Company Secretary

Mumbai
Date : April 29, 2009

D. EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES ON FOREIGN CURRENCY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  2,282,807,596  182,370,085 
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (84,380,591)  13,427,411,951 

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Opening Balance)  13,731,617,281  304,205,330 
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Closing Balance)  13,647,236,690  13,731,617,281 

(i) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Accounting Standard - 3 “Cash Flow Statements”.
(ii)  Figures in brackets indicate Outflows.
(iii)  Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period include deposits with banks aggregating to Rs. 4,585,787,689 which are pledged as mentioned  in the 

Note no. 7 of Schedule Q.
(iv)  Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/rearranged/recasted wherever necessary to make them comparable with those of current year.

 For the Year
ended on

 March 31, 2009 
Rupees

 For the Year
ended on

March 31, 2008
Rupees 
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I. REGISTRATION DETAILS

Registration No U74210MH20004PLC144367 State Code 11

Balance Sheet Date 31-Mar-09

II. CAPITAL RAISED DURING THE YEAR (AMOUNT IN RS. THOUSANDS)

Public Issue NIL Rights Issue NIL

Bonus Issue NIL Private Placement 615,639

III. POSITION OF MOBILISATION AND DEVELOPMENT OF FUNDS (AMOUNT IN RS. THOUSANDS)

Total Liabilities  53,122,718 Total Assets  53,122,718 

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Paid-up Capital 8,161,641 Reserves & Surplus 4,904,205

Secured Loans 22,397,551 Unsecured Loans 13,078,933

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Net Fixed Assets 32,042,338 Investments 332

Net Current Assets 16,070,096 Misc. Expenditure NIL

Accumulated losses 911,544

IV. PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY (AMOUNT IN RS. THOUSANDS)

Turnover (Gross Revenue) 2,745,804 Total Expenditure 3,453,566

Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (707,762) Profit / (Loss) After Tax 28,446

Earnings per Share in Rs. 0.04 Dividend Rate % NIL

V. GENERIC NAMES OF THREE PRINCIPAL PRODUCTS / SERVICES OF COMPANY (AS PER MONETARY TERMS)

Item Code No.

Product/Service Description TEL.INFRA.

Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s  General Business Profile
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Auditors’ Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

To The Board of Directors

GTL Infrastructure Limited

1. We have audited the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet of GTL Infrastructure Limited (the Company) and its Subsidiary (collectively referred to as “the 

Group”) as at March 31, 2009, and also the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date 

annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management and have been prepared by the Management on the basis 

of separate financial statements and other financial information regarding components. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 

based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 

made by Management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 

opinion.

3. Financial statement of subsidiary which reflects total assets of Rs. 3,334,828,786 as at March 31, 2009 total revenue of Rs. 62,187,056 and cash flows 

amounting to Rs. 246,338 for the year then ended, have been audited by Horwath (Mauritius).

4. We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company’s management in accordance with the requirements of Accounting 

Standards (AS) 21, Consolidated Financial Statements notified by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

5. Based on our audit as aforesaid, and on consideration of report of another auditors on the separate financial statements as explained in paragraph 3 above 

and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the attached consolidated financial statements, read 

in particular with Note no. 8 of Schedule P regarding the accounting treatment of redemption premium on Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB), give a 

true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

 (i) in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the State of Affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2009;

 (ii) in the case of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, of the Profit of the Group for the year ended on that date; and

 (iii) in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the Cash Flows of the Group for the year ended on that date.

For Chaturvedi & Shah For Yeolekar & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

R. Koria S. S. Yeolekar
Partner Partner
Membership No. – 35629 Membership No. – 36398

Mumbai 
Date: April 29, 2009
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Financial Information of Subsidiary Company

Name of the Wholly owned Subsidiary Company Towers Worldwide Limited

Country Mauritius

Reporting Currency USD

 Sr. No. Particulars Amount in Rupees

 1. Capital 52

 2. Reserves 109,079

 3. Total Assets 3,335,192,368

 4. Total Liabilities 3,333,100,471

 5. Details of Investment –

 6. Turnover –

 7. Profit before taxation 2,037,395

 8. Provision for taxation 54,629

 9. Profit after taxation 1,982,766

 10. Proposed Dividend –

The Company undertakes that annual accounts of the subsidiary Company and the related detailed information will be made available to the subsidiary Company 
investors seeking such informations at any point of time. The annual accounts of the subsidiary Company will also be kept for inspection by any investor in its head 
office and that of the subsidiary Company concerned and a note to the above effect will be included in the annual report of the Company.

Company has considered 1 USD = Rs. 51.97 as on March 31, 2009
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Consolidated Balance Sheet As At March 31, 2009

Schedule Rupees  

As At
March 31, 2009

Rupees  
SOURCES OF FUNDS:

Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital A  8,161,640,740 
Preferential Convertible Warrants  481,980,060 
Reserves and Surplus B  4,919,926,199 

 13,563,546,999 
Loan Funds

Secured Loans C  22,397,551,379 
Unsecured Loans D  13,078,932,880 

 35,476,484,259 
Total  49,040,031,258 

APPLICATION OF FUNDS:
Fixed Assets E

Gross Block  24,291,818,075 
Less : Depreciation  2,716,045,993 
Net Block  21,575,772,082 
Capital Work-in-progress  10,467,261,705 

 32,043,033,787 
Current Assets, Loans and Advances F

Inventories  24,500,239 
Sundry Debtors  550,387,416 
Cash and Bank Balances  13,647,483,028 
Loans and Advances  5,962,573,507 

 20,184,944,190 
Less: Current Liabilities and Provisions G

Current Liabilities  3,813,109,913 
Provisions  286,733,497 

 4,099,843,410 
Net Current Assets  16,085,100,780 

Miscellaneous Expenditure (to the extent not written off or adjusted) H –

Profit and Loss Account  911,896,691 

Total  49,040,031,258 
Significant Accounting Policies O
Notes on Accounts P

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For CHATURVEDI & SHAH For YEOLEKAR & ASSOCIATES  MANOJ TIRODKAR PRAKASH RANJALKAR
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants  Chairman Whole-time Director

R. KORIA S. S. YEOLEKAR  SHISHIR PARIKH RAVIKUMAR VEMULAKONDA
Partner Partner  Chief Financial Officer Joint Company Secretary

Mumbai
Date : April 29, 2009
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account For The Year Ended March 31, 2009

Schedule

For the Year ended 
on March 31, 2009

Rupees
INCOME

Net Income from Operations I  2,208,369,860 
Other income J  538,243,593 

Total  2,746,613,453 

EXPENDITURE
Infrastructure Operation & Maintenance Cost (Net) K  643,671,625 
Employee’s Cost L  170,251,011 
Administration and Other Expenses M  254,465,360 
Interest and Finance Charges (Net) N  974,772,007 
Depreciation E  1,411,513,993 

Total  3,454,673,996 

PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE TAX  (708,060,543)
LESS :
Provision for Taxation

- Current Tax  54,629 
- Deferred Tax  (742,097,689)
- Fringe Benefit Tax  5,889,357 

 (736,153,703)
PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAX  28,093,160 
ADD :
Balance as per last Balance Sheet  (939,989,851)
Balance carried to Balance Sheet  (911,896,691)

EARNINGS PER SHARE (in Rupees-Per Equity Share of Rs. 10 each)
- Basic  0.04 
- Diluted  0.04 
(Refer Note No. 15 of Schedule P)

Significant Accounting Policies O
Notes on Accounts P

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For CHATURVEDI & SHAH For YEOLEKAR & ASSOCIATES  MANOJ TIRODKAR PRAKASH RANJALKAR
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants  Chairman Whole-time Director

R. KORIA S. S. YEOLEKAR  SHISHIR PARIKH RAVIKUMAR VEMULAKONDA
Partner Partner  Chief Financial Officer Joint Company Secretary

Mumbai
Date : April 29, 2009



80

Schedules Forming Part of The Consolidated Balance Sheet

 

Rupees

As At
March 31, 2009

Rupees

SCHEDULE A : SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED:
 3,000,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each  30,000,000,000 
 50,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs.100 each  5,000,000,000 

 35,000,000,000 
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP:
 816,164,074 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up  8,161,640,740 

Total  8,161,640,740 
Notes:
i. During the year, the Company has allotted

 (a) 553,056 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each on exercise of option by ESOS holders,
 (b) 19,783,365 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each to FCCB holders on exercise of option at a Premium of Rs. 43.04 per share and
 (c) 61,563,925 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each to Preferential Convertible Warrant holders at a Premium of 

 Rs. 30 per share.

ii. The ESOS holders, FCCB holders and Preferential Convertible Warrant holders have the option to exercise/convert ESOS, 
FCCB and Warrants into 16,179,644, 179,161,773 and 120,495,015 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each respectively.

iii. Refer Note No. 7, 8 and 9 of Schedule P for terms of ESOS, FCCB and Preferential Convertible Warrants respectively.

SCHEDULE B : RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Reconstruction Reserve

Balance as at March 31, 2008
Created in terms of the Scheme of Arrangement  199,302,121 

Capital Reserve
Balance as at March 31, 2008  – 
On Forfeiture of Preferential Convertible Warrants during the year  184,600,000 
(Refer Note No 9 of Schedule P)  184,600,000 

Securities Premium Account
Balance as at March 31, 2008  1,780,033,190 
Add: On Exercise of option by -

Foreign Currency Convertible Bond holders  851,476,030 
Preferential Convertible Warrant holders  1,846,917,750 
ESOS holders  7,093,664 

 4,485,520,634 
Less: Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds and Rights Issue Expenses  22,536,285 

 4,462,984,349 
Employee Stock Option Outstanding

Balance as at March 31, 2008  75,322,980 
Less: Options exercised/lapsed during the year  5,303,719

 70,019,261 
Less: Deferred Compensation Expense

Balance as at March 31, 2008  40,990,449 
Less: Amortised/lapsed during the year  28,289,395

 12,701,054  57,318,207 
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve  15,721,522 

Total  4,919,926,199 
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Rupees 

As At
March 31, 2009

Rupees

SCHEDULE C : SECURED LOANS
Rupee Term Loans

From Banks  20,520,042,209 
From Financial Institutions  499,100,000 

 21,019,142,209 
Foreign Currency Loans

From Financial Institutions  1,378,194,600 

Vehicle Loans  214,570 
Total  22,397,551,379 

Notes:
i. Term loans from Banks and Financial Institutions are secured by way of

 (a) Hypothecation by a first pari-passu charge on all movable assets, both present and future, including first floating
  charge on all the current assets of the Company.

 (b) Mortgage by first pari-passu charge basis on all immovable assets, both present and future, of the Company.

ii. Vehicle loan is secured by way of hypothecation of the specific vehicle financed.

SCHEDULE D : UNSECURED LOANS
Long Term Loans

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds  12,615,745,740 
Short Term Loans

Buyer’s Credit (Covered under Letter of Credit issued by the Bankers)  463,187,140 
Total  13,078,932,880 

Notes:
Zero Coupon Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) of USD 100,000 each are:
i. Convertible by the holders at any time on and after January 27, 2008 but prior to close of business on November 22 , 2012. 

Each bond will be converted into fully paid up 74,095 Equity Share with par value of Rs. 10 per share at an initial Conversion 
Price of Rs. 53.04 per share.

ii. Redeemable, in whloe but not in part, at the option of the company at any time on or after November 28, 2010 but not less 
than seven business days prior to maturity date subject to fulfillment of certain terms and obtaining requisite approvals.

iii. Redeemable on maturity date at 140.4064 percent of its principal amount, if not redeemed or converted earlier.

iv. 2,418 Zero Coupon Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) of USD 100,000 each were Outstanding as on
March 31, 2009.

Schedules Forming Part of The Consolidated Balance Sheet
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Schedules Forming Part of The Consolidated Balance Sheet
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Schedules Forming Part of The Consolidated Balance Sheet

Rupees

As At 
March 31, 2009

Rupees

SCHEDULE F : CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
(A) CURRENT ASSETS
i) Inventories (as taken, valued and certified by the management)
 Stores, Spares and Consumables  24,500,239 

ii) Sundry Debtors (unsecured)
 Due for a period exceeding six months
 - Considered Good  7,589,273 
 - Considered Doubtful  33,955,642 
 Less: Provision for doubtful debts  33,955,642

 7,589,273 
- Others 
- Considered Good  542,798,143 
- Considered Doubtful  3,396,155 
Less: Provision for doubtful debts  3,396,155

 542,798,143 
 550,387,416 

Notes :
Sundry Debtors include Rs.272,189,826 due for recoveries on account of diesel, electricity, etc.
iii) Cash and Bank Balances
 Cash on hand  819,273 
 Balances with Banks (Including Cheques in hand)
 - In Current Accounts
  With Scheduled Banks  956,320,567 
  With Non-Scheduled Bank  1,213,952,141 
 - In Fixed Deposit Accounts 
  With Scheduled Banks  10,258,229,521 
  With Non-Scheduled Bank  10,403,786 
 - In Margin Money Account with Scheduled Banks  729,440,388 
 - In Fixed Deposits for Debt Service Reserve Account with Scheduled Banks  478,317,352 
 (Refer Note No 10 of Schedule P)  13,647,483,028 

Total  14,222,370,683 

(B) LOANS AND ADVANCES
 (Unsecured, Considered good unless otherwise stated)
 Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for the value to be received
 (Subject to confirmation)
 - Considered Good  3,710,094,789 
 - Considered Doubtful  205,124 
 Less: Provision for doubtful debts  205,124

 3,710,094,789 
 Deposits  160,554,422 
 Cenvat / Service Tax input credit entitlements  1,826,098,079 
 Advance Taxes (including Fringe Benefit Tax) (Net)  265,826,217 

Total  5,962,573,507 

Total  20,184,944,190
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Schedules Forming Part of The Consolidated Balance Sheet

  

Rupees

As At
March 31, 2009

Rupees 

SCHEDULE G : CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

(A) CURRENT LIABILITIES
Acceptances  2,630,699,554 
Sundry Creditors 

Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises  – 
Dues to others  255,756,219 

 255,756,219 
Unclaimed Share Application Money *  54,649 
Unearned Income  138,518,453 
Deposits Received  261,366,078 
Other Liabilities  514,698,507 
Interest accrued but not due on Loans  12,016,453 

Total  3,813,109,913 

(B) PROVISIONS
For Leave Encashment  4,635,942 
Provision for Income Tax  54,629 
Provision for Fringe Benefit Taxes  5,889,357 
Provision for mark to market losses on Derivative Contracts  276,153,569 

Total  286,733,497 

Total  4,099,843,410 

 *  Amount does not include amount, due and outstanding, to be credited to Investor Education & Protection Fund

SCHEDULE H : MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)

Share Issue Expenses –
FCCB Issue Expenses 22,536,285

22,536,285
Less: Written off to the Profit and Loss Account –

22,536,285
Less: Written off against Securities Premium Account 22,536,285

Total  –
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Schedules Forming Part of The Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

For the Year 
ended on 

March 31, 2009
Rupees

SCHEDULE I : NET INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
Service Charges from Telecom/Network Infrastructure Facilities  2,453,613,806 
Equipment Provisioning  9,221,950 

 2,462,835,756 
Less: Service Tax Recovered  254,465,896 

Total  2,208,369,860 

SCHEDULE J : OTHER INCOME
Profit on Sale of Long Term Investments (Net)  3,363,000 
Interest Received  534,688,125 
(Tax Deducted at Source Rs. 18,756,587)
Balances Written Back  188,106 
Miscellaneous Income  4,362 

Total  538,243,593 

SCHEDULE K : INFRASTRUCTURE OPERATION & MAINTENANCE COST (NET)
Site Rentals (Net)  161,477,654 
Power and Fuel Charges  859,279,003 
Repairs and Maintenance to Plant and Equipments  5,808,382 
Other Operating Expenditure  448,967,154 

 1,475,532,193 
Less: Recovered from Customers (Net of  Service Tax)  831,860,568 

Total  643,671,625 

SCHEDULE L : EMPLOYEES COST (Including Managerial Remuneration)
Salaries and Allowances  131,545,813 
Contribution to Providend Fund, Gratuity Fund and Other Funds  6,519,334 
Employee Stock Option Cost  24,777,336 
Employee Welfare and other amenities  7,408,528 

Total  170,251,011 
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Schedules Forming Part of The Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

For the Year 
ended on 

March 31, 2009
Rupees

SCHEDULE M : ADMINISTRATIVE, SELLING AND OTHER EXPENSES
Administrative Expenses
Rent  28,696,213 
Rates and Taxes  9,891,587 
Electricity  7,524,099 
Repairs and Maintenance

- Office Building  279,268 
- Office Equipments  2,322,183 
- Others  2,490,961 

Insurance Premium  10,358,178 
Communication Cost  11,278,041 
Travel and Conveyance  24,482,222 
Legal and Professional Charges  23,622,890 
Payment to Auditors  4,893,298 
Office Expenses  16,872,101 
Printing and Stationery  11,677,223 
Directors’ Sitting Fees  981,982 
Miscellaneous Expenses  38,830,819 

Selling Expenses
Advertisement and Business Promotion  7,043,202 
Other Expenses
Bad Debts  12,486,178 
Provision for Doubtful Debts  37,556,922 
Loss on Sale of Fixed Asset (Net)  3,177,993 

Total  254,465,360 

SCHEDULE N : INTEREST AND FINANCE CHARGES (Net)
Interest 

On Term Loans  1,002,632,836 
Others  4,151,285 

Bank and Financial Charges  18,550,641 
 1,025,334,762 

Less : 
Foreign Exchange Gain (Net)  50,562,755 

Total  974,772,007 
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2009 AND 
THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2009

SCHEDULE O: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Principles of Consolidation :

 The consolidated financial statements relate to the GTL Infrastructure Limited (‘the Company’) and its subsidiary company. The consolidated financial 
statements have been prepared on the following basis:

 a. The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary company are combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of like 
items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions in accordance with Accounting 
Standard (AS) 21 – “Consolidated Financial Statements”.

 b. In case of foreign subsidiary, being non-integral foreign operations, revenue items are consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the year. All 
assets and liabilities are converted at rates prevailing at the end of the year. Any exchange difference arising on consolidation is recognised as the 
foreign currency translation reserve.

 c. The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiary, over the net assets at the time of acquisition of shares in the subsidiary is recognised in 
the financial statements as Goodwill.

2. Other significant accounting policies :
 These are set out under “Significant Accounting Policies” as given in the Standalone Financial Statements of GTL Infrastructure Limited.

SCHEDULE P: NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

1.  The consolidated financial statements are prepared for the first time as the subsidiary is acquired in current year, accordingly the previous year’s figures are 
not presented.

2.  Following subsidiary company is considered in the consolidated financial statements:

Name of the Subsidiary Country of Incorporation Proportion of ownership interest
Towers Worldwide Limited Mauritius 100%

3. Contingent Liabilities:
(Amount in Rupees)

Sr.
No.

Particulars As At  
March 31, 2009

a. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (Net of Advances)  16,030,962,514 

(cash outflow is expected on execution of such capital contracts, on progressive basis)

b. Contingent Liabilities not provided for :

i.  Bank Guarantees (Bank guarantees are provided under contractual / legal obligation)  110,080,894 

ii.  Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts  2,479,568 

iii.  Premium on Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds issued [Refer Note 8 below] 5,097,568,687

iv.  Disputed liability in respect of Income-tax demand (including interest) matter under appeal (Amount deposited  Rs. 232,664)  232,664 

v.  Disputed Liability in respect of Sales Tax Matter under appeal (Amount deposited Rs. 3,055,230)  25,974,925 

vi.  Disputed liability in respect of Custom Duty (Amount deposited Rs. 9,294,371)  9,294, 371

 No cash outflow is expected in near future in respect of Note number 3(b) (i), (ii), (iii) and (v).

4. The Company has entered into Master Services Agreement (MSA) with the Telecom Operators for a period of 10-15 years. Invoices are raised on these operators 
for provisioning fees and recovery of pass through expenses as part of the said MSA which are recoverable in full. The Company has requested for the balance 
confirmations from Sundry Debtors as on March 31, 2009 which are awaited. The Company has obtained balance confirmations from major Sundry Creditors.

5.  In the Opinion of the Management, the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are approximately of the value stated, if realised in the ordinary course of 
business.

6.  The Financial Statements of Tower Worldwide Limited reflect total income of Rs. 62,187,056 and total expenditure of Rs. 1,452,776 for the period ended 
March 31, 2009 and total assets of Rs. 3,334,828,786 and total liabilities of Rs. 2,984,741 as on March 31, 2009 are prepared as per the International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The proportion of Income, Expenditure, Assets and Liabilities are 2.26%, 0.04%, 6.39%, and 0.01% respectively to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2009 AND 
THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2009

7.  Employee Stock Option Scheme:

 a. The Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2005 (ESOS) was first time introduced and implemented during the Accounting Period 2005-06 for which the 
approval was obtained from the shareholders at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on November 26, 2005.

 b. On November 26, 2005, the Company granted 1,550,000 Options (“Grant 1”) convertible into Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each to 15 employees. The 
Exercise Price of the Options was fixed at Rs. 10 each for conversion into one Equity Share of the Company.

  During the year, out of above Options 9,000, Options have been lapsed.

 c. On February 12, 2007 and February 27, 2007, the Company granted 7,490,000 Options (“Grant 2”) and 25,000 Options (“Grant 3”), both, convertible into 
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, to 42 employees. The Exercise Price of the Options was fixed at Rs. 29.81 each for conversion into one Equity Share of 
the Company.

  Pursuant to clause 15 of Employee Stock Option Scheme 2005, on October 9, 2007, consequent to the issue of shares on Rights basis, the Exercise 
Price of the Options in respect of (“Grant 2”) and (“Grant 3”) was refixed to Rs.19.90 in place of Rs.29.81.

  During the year, out of Options so granted under (“Grant 2”) 497,250 Options have been lapsed.

 d. On October 9, 2007, the Company granted 650,000 Options (“Grant 4”), convertible into Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each to 3 employees. The Exercise 
Price of the Options was fixed at Rs. 26.48 each for conversion into one Equity Share of the Company.

 e. On March 11, 2008, the Company granted 1,700,000 Options (“Grant 8”), convertible into Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each to 5 employees. The Exercise 
Price of the Options was fixed at Rs. 33.60 each for conversion into one Equity Share of the Company.

 f. On October 9, 2007, with a view to compensate the Option holders for the Rights Issue, the Company has granted-

  � (“Grant Number 5”) consisting of 1,007,500 Options at the exercise price of Rs. 10 each against (“Grant 1”).

  � (“Grant Number 6”) consisting of 7,190,000 Options at the modified exercise price of Rs. 19.90 each in place of Rs. 29.81 each against (“Grant 2”).

  � (“Grant Number 7”) consisting of 25,000 Options at the modified exercise price of Rs. 19.90 each in place of Rs. 29.81 each against (“Grant 3”).

  During the year out of the Options granted under (“Grant 5”), 9,000 Options have been lapsed.

  During the year out of Options granted under (“Grant 6”), 497,250 Options have been lapsed.

  The above Options vest over a period ranging from one to three years as follows:

Percent to Vest Period of vesting from date of grant
35% At the end of Twelve months
35% At the end of Twenty Four months

Balance At the end of Thirty Six months

 g. On October 9, 2007, the Company also granted 249,000 Options (“Grant 4”), convertible into Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, to 58 employees. The 
Exercise Price of the Options was fixed at Rs. 26.48 each for conversion into one Equity Share of the Company.

  During the year out of above Options 17,300 Options have been lapsed.

  These Options vest over a period ranging from one to five years as follows:

Number of Years of Service of 
Employee in the Company and GTL 
Limited (*) as on date of allotment

Conversion at the end of 
12

Months
18

Months
24

Months
30

Months
36

Months

IIV 5 years 100% – – – –

IIV 4 years 80% 20% – – –

IIV 3 years 60% 20% 20% – –

IIV 2 years 40% 20% 20% 20% –

IIV 1 year 20% 20% 20% 20% 20%

  (*) As per the scheme, number of years of service of an employee in GTL Limited (Associate of the Company) is also considered for calculation of 
aforesaid period.

 h. All the Options granted till date have an exercise period of Thirty Six months from the date of their vesting.
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2009 AND 
THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2009

 i. The Company applies intrinsic-value based method of accounting for determining Employee Compensation Expense for its ESOS. Had the Employee 
Compensation Expense been determined using the fair value approach, the Company’s Net Profit and Loss and basic and diluted earnings per share as 
reported would have reduced to the proforma amounts as indicated below:

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars 2008-09
Net Profit/(Loss) as Reported  28,093,160 
Less : Employee Compensation Expense  67,235,913 
Adjusted Proforma  (39,142,753)
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share as reported  0.04 
Proforma Basic and Diluted Earnings per share  (0.05)

 j. The following table summarises the Company’s Stock Options activity for ESOS:

(Amount in Rupees)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars 2008-09
No. of Shares Weighted average 

exercise price 
a. i. Outstanding at the beginning of the year 17,762,500  20.80 

ii. Granted during the year  NIL  NIL 
iii. Lapsed  during the year  (1,029,800)  14.93 
iv. Exercised during the year  (553,056)  17.83 
v. Expired during the  the year  NIL  NIL 

b. Outstanding at the end of the year  16,179,644  16.57 
c. Exercisable at the end of the year  10,906,244  14.97 
d. Weighted average remaining contractual life (in years)  2.56 
e. Weighted average Intrinsic value of Options granted  7.15 

8.  Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds:
 In the year 2007-08, the Company issued 3,000 Zero Coupon Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) of USD 100,000 each. The bonds are redeemable 

only if there is no conversion of the bonds earlier. Hence, the payment of premium on redemption is contingent in nature, the outcome of which is dependent 
on uncertain future events and accordingly, no provision is considered necessary nor has been made in the accounts in respect of such premium. In case the 
bonds are redeemed then in such scenario the Company intends to adjust the premium on redemption to Securities Premium Account. The pro-rata premium 
as on March 31, 2009 works out to Rs. 1,363,627,510.

 The details of bonds conversion during the year ended on March 31, 2009 is as under:

Particulars Amount of FCCB
in USD

Number of Equity
Shares @ Rs. 10 each

Balance of FCCBs
in Rupees

Balance As At April 1, 2008 268,500,000 198,945,138 10,766,850,000

Less: Converted during the Year 26,700,000 19,783,365 1,049,309,680

Less: Exchange Difference NIL NIL (2,898,205,420)

Balance As At March 31, 2009 241,800,000 179,161,773 12,615,745,740

9.  In the year 2007-08 the Company had issued 263,650,000 Preferential Convertible Warrants (Exercise Price of Rs. 40 each) on preferential basis to various 
investors, against which it has received Rs. 4,546,779,460 till March 31, 2009.  Each warrant carries a right to convert the same into one Equity Share of
Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs. 30 each (as per the formula prescribed under the SEBI (DIP) guidelines) over a period of 18 months from date of allotment.

 Of the above 97,004,985 warrants have been converted into the Equity Shares and a warrant holder holding 46,150,000 warrants who had paid 10% 
consideration of Rs.184,600,000 expressed inability to pay remaining  amount of Rs. 1,661,400,000. Accordingly, the Board of Directors forfeited the same 
and credited the amount received against those warrants to Capital Reserve.

 Rs. 481,980,060 being 10% of the exercise price for 120,495,015 warrants outstanding as on March 31, 2009 has been shown as “Preferential Convertible 
Warrants” in the Balance Sheet.

 Out of the Preferential Convertible Warrants proceeds of Rs. 4,546,779,460, Rs. 1,949,440,000 has been utilised towards passive telecom infrastructure as on 
March 31, 2009. The unutilised proceeds have been invested in Fixed Deposits with the banks.
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10.  Balances with Banks include deposits with Indian banks aggregating to Rs. 4,585,787,689 pledged towards Debt Services Reserve Account, Margin Money 
for Letter of Credits, Bank Guarantees, Security for Borrowings by capital goods vendors and Sales Tax Authorities.

11. Prior Period Items:
 Prior Period Items included in the Profit and Loss Account:

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Schedule No. 2008-09
Expenses :
Infrastructure Operation and Maintenance Cost K  75,000 
Salaries and Allowances L  2,222 
Rent M  4,000 
Electricity M  32,517 
Communication Cost M  73,966 
Travel and Conveyance M  393,367 
Legal and Professional Charges M  347,218 
Miscellaneous Expenses M  765,669 
Total :  1,693,959 

12.  Employee Benefits:
 As per Accounting Standard 15 “Employee Benefits” the disclosure of Employee Benefit, as defined in Accounting Standard are given below :

 Defined Contribution Plan

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars 2008-09
Employer’s Contribution to Provident fund 8,472,927
Employer’s Contribution to Pension fund 1,380,971
Total: 9,853,898

 Defined Benefit Plan

 The Employee’s Gratuity Fund Scheme, which is a defined benefit plan, is managed by the Trust maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India [LIC]. 
The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as 
giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation for compensated 
absences is recognised in same manner as gratuity.

 a.  Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Gratuity Funded Compensated  Absences
Unfunded 

2008-09 2008-09
Defined Benefit Obligation at beginning of the year  2,949,302  3,133,368 
Current Service Cost  2,207,831  2,330,173 
Current Interest Cost  235,944  250,669 
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss  (410,062)  227,540 
Benefits paid  NIL  (1,305,808)
Defined Benefit Obligation at end of the year  4,983,015  4,635,942 
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2009 AND 
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 b. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of the plan assets

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Gratuity Funded
2008-09

Fair Value of Plan Asset at beginning of the year 2,623,310

Expected Return on Plan Assets 209,865 
Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) 349,396
Contributions  3,786,172 
Benefits paid  NIL 
Fair Value of Plan Asset at the end of the year  6,968,743 

 c. Reconciliation of present value of obligations and fair value of plan assets

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Gratuity Funded Compensated 
Absences Unfunded 

2008-09 2008-09
Fair Value of Plan Asset at the end of the year  6,968,743  NIL 
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of year  4,983,015  4,635,942 
Liability/ (Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet  (1,985,728)  4,635,942 

 d. Expense recognised during the year

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Gratuity Funded Compensated 
Absences Unfunded 

2008-09 2008-09
Current Service Cost  2,207,831  2,330,173 
Interest Cost  235,944  250,669 
Expected Return on Plan Assets  (209,865)  NIL 
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss  (759,458)  227,540 
Net Cost Recognised in Profit and Loss Account  1,474,452  2,808,382 

 e.  Assumptions used to determine the defined benefit obligations

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Gratuity Funded Compensated 
Absences Unfunded 

2008-09 2008-09
Mortality Table (LIC) (1994-96 Ultimate)   
Discount Rate (p.a.) 8% 8%
Estimated rate of return on Plan Assets (p.a.) 8% Not Applicable
Expected rate of increase in salary (p.a.) 5% 5%

  The estimates of rate of increase in salary considered in actuarial valuation, taking into account, inflation, seniority, promotion, attrition and other relevant 
factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by Actuary.

13.  Segment Reporting:

 The Company is in the business of providing “Shared User Infrastructure” facilities on “Build, Own and Operate” basis and as such there are no separate 
reportable segments. The Company’s operations are predominantly only in India.



92

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2009 AND 
THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2009

14.  Related Party Disclosures:
 a.  Related Parties:

I. Associates
a.   GTL Limited
b.   Technology Infrastructure Limited
c.   GTL International Limited

II. Key Managerial Personnel
a. Mr. Manoj Tirodkar, Chairman
b. Mr. Prakash Ranjalkar, Whole-time Director
c. Mr. Shishir Parikh, Chief Financial Officer

III. Enterprise in which Key Managerial Personnel II (a) has significant influence 
Global Holding Corporation Private Limited

 b. Transactions with Related Parties:

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Associates Key Managerial 
Personnel

Enterprise in which Key 
Managerial Personnel has 

significant influence 
2008-09 2008-09 2008-09

[with I (a) above] [with II above] [with III above]
Purchase of Fixed Assets 8,935,266,301 NIL 4,166,700
Refund of Advance NIL NIL 500,000
Sale of Fixed Assets 11,890,671 NIL NIL
Net Income from Services / Equipment Provisioning 737,892,210 NIL NIL
Reimbursement of expenses from 23,574,212 NIL NIL
Infrastructure Operation and Maintenance Cost 162,754,359 NIL NIL
Rent 2,691,513 NIL NIL
Legal and Professional Charges 8,655,210 NIL NIL
Reimbursement of expenses to 72,850,330 NIL NIL

[with I (b) above]
Equity Shares Allotted 1,422,557,000 NIL 1,040,000,000
Amounts Received against Preferential Convertible Warrants 1,280,301,300 NIL 936,000,000
Salaries and Allowances (*) NIL 11,036,843 NIL
Director’s sitting fees paid (**) NIL 180,000 NIL

[with I (c) above]
Advance Received 410,905 NIL NIL

Outstanding As At March 31, 2009 March 31, 2009 March 31, 2009
[with I (a) above] [with II above] [with III above]

Security Deposit received 2,500,000 NIL NIL
Security Deposit given 1,600,000 NIL NIL
Capital Advances (Net) 306,607,521 NIL NIL

[with I (b) above]
Preferential Convertible Warrants (Advance for Conversion) 57,744,300 NIL 424,235,760

[with I (c) above]
Advance 410,905 NIL NIL
(*) Salaries and Allowances includes Rs. 4,683,135 paid to Mr. Prakash Ranjalkar (Whole-time Director) and Rs. 6,353,708 paid to Mr. Shishir Parikh 
(Chief Financial Officer). 
(**) Director’s Sitting Fees is amount paid to Mr. Manoj Tirodkar Rs. 180,000.
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THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2009

15.  Earning Per Share (Basic and Diluted):
(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars 2008-09
Net Profit after tax attributable to Equity Shareholders for Basic EPS  28,093,160 
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for Basic EPS  763,453,188 
Basic Earning Per Share of Rs.10 each  0.04 
Net Profit after tax attributable to Equity Shareholders for Diluted EPS   28,093,160 
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding  for Basic EPS  763,453,188 
Add:- Potential Equity Shares (Options)  4,494,864 
Number of Shares used for Calculating Diluted EPS  767,948,052 
Diluted Earning Per Share of Rs.10 each  0.04 

 The effect of Warrants and Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds on the Earning Per Share are anti-dilutive and hence, the same is ignored for the purpose of 
calculation of dilutive earning per share.

16.  Deferred Tax Liability / (Assets):
 As required by Accounting Standard 22 on “Accounting for Taxes on Income”, Deferred Tax is comprising of the following items:

(Amount in Rupees)
Particulars As at

March 31, 2009
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Related to Fixed Assets  921,061,541 
Total  921,061,541 
Deferred Tax Assets:
Unabsorbed Depreciation  1,124,377,725 
Disallowance under Income Tax  21,557,584 
Total  1,145,935,309 
Net Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset)  (224,873,768)

 As at March 31, 2009, the Company has Net Deferred Tax Assets of Rs. 224,873,768. In the absence of virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income 
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised, the same has not been recognised in the books of account in line with Accounting 
Standard 22 dealing with “Accounting for Taxes on Income”.

17.  Details of Net Pre-Operative Expenses considered as Capital Work-In-Progress:
(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars 2008-09
Opening Balance  1,231,326,220 
Add :
Expenditure Incurred during the year 

  Infrastructure Operation and Maintenance Cost  547,318,363 
  Salaries and Allowances  76,248,067 
  Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds  3,939,658 
  Rent  81,756,222 
  Insurance  2,657,872 
  Communication Cost  6,180,860 
  Travel and Conveyance  35,307,026 
  Legal and Professional Charges  334,214,138 
  Stamp Duty and Registration Charges  8,156,285 
  General and Administrative Expenses  313,208,225 
  Interest on Term Loans  1,033,730,068 
  Interest Others  434,791,916 
  Bank and Financial Charges  423,714,582 

 4,532,549,502 
Less:

  Interest Received  61,927,031
  (TDS Current Year 14,032,665)
  Profit on Sale of Current Investments  93,171,557

 4,377,450,914 
Less: Amount allocated to Fixed Assets  2,963,445,253 
Closing Balance 1,414,005,661 
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As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For CHATURVEDI & SHAH For YEOLEKAR & ASSOCIATES  MANOJ TIRODKAR PRAKASH RANJALKAR
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants  Chairman Whole-time Director

R. KORIA S. S. YEOLEKAR  SHISHIR PARIKH RAVIKUMAR VEMULAKONDA
Partner Partner  Chief Financial Officer Joint Company Secretary

Mumbai
Date : April 29, 2009

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2009 AND 
THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2009

18. In accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS-28) on “Impairment of Assets” the management during the year carried out an exercise of identifying the 
assets that may have been impaired in respect of each cash generating unit. On the basis of this review carried out by the management, there was no 
impairment loss on fixed assets during the year ended March 31, 2009.

19. Financial and Other Derivative Instruments:
 a. Derivative contracts entered into by the Company and outstanding as on March 31, 2009:

  For Hedging Currency and Interest rate related risks:

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars As At
March 31, 2009

Forward Contract 465,411,909
Currency Swaps 1,000,000,000

 b. All derivative and financial instruments acquired by the Company are for hedging purpose only.

 c. Net Foreign Currency exposures that are not hedged by derivative instruments or Forward Contracts as at March 31, 2009 amount to
Rs. 3,405,681,713.

 d. Expenditure on account of premium on forward exchange contracts to be recognised in the Profit and Loss account of subsequent accounting period 
aggregates to Rs.1,744,555.

20.  Operating Lease:

 The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases for premises and network sites. These lease agreements provide for 
cancellation by either parties thereto as per the terms and conditions of the agreements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement For The Year Ended on  March 31, 2009

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For CHATURVEDI & SHAH For YEOLEKAR & ASSOCIATES  MANOJ TIRODKAR PRAKASH RANJALKAR
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants  Chairman Whole-time Director

R. KORIA S. S. YEOLEKAR  SHISHIR PARIKH RAVIKUMAR VEMULAKONDA
Partner Partner  Chief Financial Officer Joint Company Secretary

Mumbai
Date : April 29, 2009

For the 
Year ended on
March 31, 2009 

Rupees
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before tax as per Profit and Loss Account  (708,060,543)
ADJUSTED  FOR
Net Prior Year Adjustments  1,693,959 
Depreciation  1,411,513,993 
Loss/(Profit) on sale of fixed asset  3,177,993 
Profit on sale of Investments  (3,363,000)
Interest Income  (534,688,125)
Interest and Finance charges  1,025,334,762 
Balances Written back (net)  (188,106)
Provision for Wealth Tax  50,000 
Employee Stock Option Cost  24,777,336 
Foreign Exchange (Gain)/Loss (Net)*  (34,841,233)
Bad Debts  12,486,178 
Provision for Doubtful Debts/Advances  37,556,922 
OPERATING PROFIT  BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGE  1,235,450,136 
ADJUSTMENTS FOR
Trade and Other Receivables 336,529,763
Inventories  (24,500,239)
Trade Payables  1,670,533,656 
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS  3,218,013,316
Net Prior Year Adjustments  (1,693,959)
Direct taxes paid / Refund  (179,284,550)
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  3,037,034,807

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets and Capital Work-in-progress  (14,410,493,072)
Sale of Fixed Assets  2,626,667,789 
Purchase of Current Investments  (94,257,971,517)
Sale of Current Investments  95,017,869,074 
Movement in Loans (Net) (2,797,004,000) 
Interest Income  445,880,724 
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (13,375,051,002)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Issue of Shares/Preferential Convertible Warrants  2,227,133,864 
Issue Expenses  (22,536,286)
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings  12,867,811,223 
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings  (4,524,175,380)
Short Term Loans (Net)  338,103,775 
Interest and Finance Charges  (2,915,262,850)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES  7,971,074,346 

D. EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES ON FOREIGN CURRENCY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  2,282,807,596 
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (84,134,253)

Cash and Cash Equivalents As At 1st April, 2008  13,731,617,281 
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Closing Balance)  13,647,483,028 
* Includes exchange difference on account of translation of Foreign Subsidiary Company’s Financial Statements.
Notes :
(i) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Accounting  Standard - 3 “Cash Flow Statements”.
(ii) Figures in brackets indicate Outflows.
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period include deposits with banks aggregating to Rs. 4,585,787,689
 which are pledged as mentioned in the Note no. 10 of Schedule P.
(iv) Consolidated cash flows are prepared for the first time as the subsidiary is acquired in current year, accordingly the previous year’s figures are not presented. 
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